Delegate Package 2019

Unicamp of Ontario Incorporated
638159 Prince of Wales Rd.
Mulmur, ON. L0N 1H0
519-925-6432
admin@unicampofontario.ca
www.unicampofontario.ca

Table of Contents: Delegate Package 2019
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Agenda for 2019 Annual General Meeting
Minutes from 2018 Annual General Meeting
List of Motions from 2018 - 2019 Board
President’s Report - Janice Canning
Vice President’s Report- Iris K. Murray
Treasurer’s Report - Sky Dasey
a. Financial Statements 2018
b. Budget 2019
7. Seasonal Report - Kosu Boudreau
8. 50th Anniversary Event and Fundraising Report - Sue Berlove
9. Communication Report - Jeff Baker
10. Executive Director Report - Yvette Salinas - ONCA
a. Executive Director Numbers
b. Insurance - What is Covered
c. Accessibility for Ontarians With Disabilities Act (AODA) Timeline
d. Updated Policies
i.
Drug and Alcohol Policy
ii.
Dog Policy
iii.
Medications Policy
11. Camp Director & Program Director Report - Michelle McComb and Jenny Thomas-Bojin
12. Property Manager’s Report - Terry O’Sullivan
13. Nominating Committee: Bios of Potential New Board Members
14. Additional Information
a. Camp Staff Structure
b. Ontario Non-profit Corporations Act (ONCA)
c. Dave’s Cottage Communal Unit - Information about Decision-Making Process

Unicamp of Ontario Incorporated
Annual General Meeting
Saturday, August 31, 2019 1:30 pm at Unicamp of Ontario
Agenda

1330
1335
1340
1345
1350
1400
1410

Call to Order
Welcome and Introduction of the Board
Appointment of Parliamentarian
Agenda: Motion to accept the meeting agenda
Minutes of 2018 AGM: review and as appropriate amend, move to accept
Business arising from the previous minutes
Board Motions from 2018 - 2019

1445

Board of Directors Reports: Janice Canning / Board Members

1455

Financial Statements & Treasurer’s Report: Sky Dasey

1520

Motion to accept Board & Financial Reports

1525

Appointment of Auditor: motion to re-appoint Ian Edmonds, CPA, to conduct the
annual review of Unicamp finances

1530

Review of Staff Reports:
Camp Director and Program Director Report: Michelle McComb
Property Manager Report: Terry O’Sullivan
Executive Director Report: Yvette Salinas

1550

Motion to accept the Staff Reports

1555
1605

1620

Nominating Committee: Report
Nominated Members to the Unicamp Board of Directors for 2019-2020
Motions for additional nominations from the floor
Election of the Board of Directors
Nominating Committee Election

1635

New Business

1700

Move to adjourn
Next Annual General Meeting will be held at
1:30pm on Saturday September 5th, 2019 at Unicamp

2018 Annual General Meeting of Unicamp of Ontario
Called to order by Sky Dasey at 1:30.
Sky thanked all present for attending.
List of Delegates
First Unitarian Congregation of Toronto
First Unitarian Congregation of Toronto
Grand River Unitarian Congregation
Grand River Unitarian Congregation
Unitarian Congregation of Niagara
Unitarian Congregation of Niagara
Neighbourhood Unitarian Universalist Congregation
Neighbourhood Unitarian Universalist Congregation
Huronia Unitarian Fellowship
Unitarian Fellowship
Unitarian Congregation in Mississauga
Unitarian Congregation in Mississauga
Don Heights Unitarian Congregation
Don Heights Unitarian Congregation
Unitarian Fellowship of Peterborough
Unitarian Fellowship of Peterborough
Unitarian Congregation of Guelph
Unitarian Congregation of Guelph
Elora Fergus Unitarian Universalists

Paul Scott
Diane Strong
Dianne Heise
Ed Bennett
Liina Veer
Matt Virro
Cory Ashton
Karen Richards
Dave Collacutt
Huronia
Bonnie Collacutt
Brigitte Twomey
Bert Twomey
Peter Lister
Tom Brown
Stephanie Curtin
Avril Siddle
Maureen
Blackwood
Cheryl Cadogan
Jim Sannes

Sky Dasey presented the agenda.
Sky Dasey introduces the Board.
Appointment of the Parliamentarian - Sky Dasey Introduces Ellen
Papenburg. Diane Strong moves that Ellen be the parliamentarian.
Seconded by Peter Lister. MOVED.
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Agenda - Sky asked for contribution to the agenda. Note that a motion
from Jim will be added to new business. Avril moves the agenda.
Seconded by Jim. MOVED.
Minutes from 2017 AGM - Delegate Sue with Toronto 1st not Hamilton.
Ellen needs to be taken off the delegate list because of her role as
parliamentarian. Karen moves the minutes as amended, Paul Scott
from Toronto 1st seconds. MOVED.
Business arising from the previous minutes None.
Board of Directors Report – Call from questions about the collective
report. Sky read her report to the AGM. Sky moves the report. Ed
Bennett seconds. The written report contains reports from the varied
portfolios. Russell’s report from years ago somehow made it into the
group report. This report is to be struck. Ben’s report should be under
staff reports rather than the volunteer board reports. Understanding
these changes the motion CARRIED.
Financial Statements and Treasure’s Report.
2017 final statements reviewed first. Finished the year with an
excellent net review. Compared 2016 and 2017. Complete overhaul of
the accounting and book keeping system required hiring professionals
to create systems and train staff to conduct better practices which saves
and earns money going forward. Jim Sannes asked about Unicamp
paying rent – the CSI…. Bert Twomey asked why the insurance cost
increased, Mel explained 2016 and part of 2017 WSIB wasn’t paid. In
2017 there was a $20 000 legacy donation from Jill Worstley check.
Where is the accounting information being held now? Quick books
online (3rd party) and cloud.
Tracy read her written report.
Tracy’s report included a snapshot of 2018 financials so far. Kids camp
revenue increased approximately $24000. A portion of increased
revenue went to increasing staff wages – a directive from the delegates
at a previous AGM.
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Tracy shared her gratitude to the community for the opportunity to
serve on the board.
Tracy moves the Treasurer’s Report. Seconded by Brigitee Twomey.
Ed Bennett asked about the property taxes being high. Mel answered.
Forestry Tax Initiative In the past land assessment, tax initiative credit
for land unused. 2014 Admin stopped doing this work. Mel worked to
have this. The assessments cost about $700 every 10 years. Secondly
property taxes were not paid one year.
Maggie Kambanis asked about costs of Repairs and Maintenance being
significantly lower 2017. 2016 was higher than usual because of the
cost of repairing hydro lines.
Jim Sannes commented that driveway is significantly better maintained.
Thanks to the donation from Huronia Unitarian Fellowship
The donation for the cost of a new stove by the Wild Ginger group was
recognized.
Motion called. Treasure’s Report CARRIED with consensus.
Appointment of the Auditor - Tracy shared information about Ian
Edmonds, CPA. Tracy moves that we appoint Ian Edmonds as auditor
for 2018. Seconded by Cheryl Cadogan. CARRIED with consensus.
Administrative Reports
Property Manager - Terry O’Sullivan read his written report.
Camp Manager Report Michelle McComb
4 weeks of kids camp – went really well. No kids were turned away.
Some kids stayed for four weeks.
Staff’s wage increased, helped retain experienced staff enabling
mentorship. Government grants helped fund this.
Michelle introduced other staff leaders, Operation Manager Sadie
Galvin, Kids Camp and Family Lead Thomas, Head Cook Hannah,
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Property Manager Terry O’Sullivan. Adult programmer Ben Robin,
customer service rep, Eli Campbell-Weiner.
Ed Bennett asked about which congregations send more kids to camp.
Mel said the information is available on the database. Through Colbalt
Silver. Ed suggested using this information to recruit more campers by
seeing which congregations have the lowest enrollment.
Bonnie Collacutt asked if congregations were contacted when spots
became available. Mel said they were.
Jim Sannes shared that he really enjoyed the reminders. Sky shared that
they are automatic sends through the new system.
A long time Unicamp supporter at Peterborough named Neil passed
away this year. Neil started giving a donation directing to Peterborough
campership funds. Created a direct donation . Single handedly
contributed to about 5 kids a year to come to Unicamp. His leadership
initiated this contribution.
Aujke Byker shared that people participating in her workshops
complained and were frustrated with the new registration system.
Improvements are on the way.
Yvonne Bloom shared that Camp Diversity week, overlapped with Jouth.
Jouth enrollment was low.
Executive Director Report – Melissa Horvath-Lucid
Mel spoke to the advantages of the new computer systems, while not
programing is not yet perfect, drastic improvements have happened.
Profitability has been significantly greater.
Mel discussed her written report including the snapshot of numbers.
Mel recognized Jeff Baker’s contribution to the website that goes far
above and beyond the role of a board member.
Inclusive gender diversity continues to be a bright spot in Unicamp’s
offerings.
Mel discussed technical versus adaptive problem solving. The staff is
often overwhelmed by complaints. Discussed camp users looking to
camp for reciprocity rather than seeing the intrinsic value of
contributing. Ask yourself “how am I showing up in relationship here?”
The seemingly endless queue of complaints is exhaustive to staff. (and
board members)
Mel highlighted the contribution of kitchen staff. There is a finite
quantity of space. What they do is magnificent.
Camp infrastructure is falling down literally.
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We must work to invest in staff.
Please ‘throw’ some gratitude to the staff. Please invest money, time
and energy.
Mel shared that it was a pleasure to work with Jane. Her dedication to
advocate for the staff
Mel shared that the boards role to attend to the financial and legal
components to of camp. Complaints distract camp staff from their most
important work.
“We must invest in this space now. Unicamp is crying.” Specifically staff
and buildings need investment.
‘Legacy Leaf Campaign’ on a co-created commemorative tree.
Mel shared a poem she used to draw strength over the past year.
There was a general discussion of how complaints affect the culture of
camp.
Diane Heise suggested surveying to have a broader sense overall
weighted results.
Cooperative community vs commodity community. Clarify what
Unicamp is.
Sky moves the Administrative Reports. Seconded by Avril. Carried
unanimously.
Break 4:14-4:30
Nominating Committee for 2018-2019
Avril Siddle shared the nominating guidelines. Including the fact that
individuals are nominated to the board in general. The board positions
individuals hold will decided by the board members.
Bios are included in the nominating package to delegates..
Nominated are:
Russell Thomas-Bojin
Janice Canning (re-election)
Jeff Baker (re-election)
Iris Murray (re-election)
Called for Nominations from the floor three times.
Sky calls a motion that the three people seeking re-elections and Russell
be accepted for the 2018-2019 board. Seconded by Sannes. Carried
unanimously.
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This creates a 6 person board, a smaller board than have operated in the
past. Elected members can vote additional members onto the slate.
Nominating Committee Creation for the 2019-2020
Sky read the guidelines for nominating committee.
Sky thanked the members of this year’s Nominating Committee.
A board member will be nominated to sit on this committee at the first
meeting of the 2018-2019 Unicamp board.
Jim Lawry
Tracy Galvin
Eli Campbell-Weiner
Sky moves that Jim Lawry, Tracy Galvin, Eli Campbell-Weiner form the
nominating Committed for 2019-2020. Seconded by Diane Strong.
CARRIED Unanimously.
50th Anniversary Celebrations Committee
Stephanie Curtin
Jim Lawry
Lauren Renzetti
Iris Murray
Michelle McComb
Sky suggested that they meet directly after this meeting.
New Business
Canadian Unitarians for Social Justice – Jim Sannes
Jim Sannes moved - Whereas the practice of animal agriculture
represents more than 50% of the climate changes we are now
experiencing. Whereas the top 15 preventable diseases are related to
the consumption of animal products. Whereas the factory farms and
industrial slaughterhouses are incredibly cruel to living beings.
Therefore be it resolved that Unicamp reduce the amount of animal
products, including dairy as much as possible and encourage the use of
whole food plant based nourishment options in all meal plans.
Seconded by Tom Brown. Seeking as straw vote as a purpose of
canvassing.
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Tracy suggested a friendly amendment which focused on ethically
sourced animal food products. Add the changed motion. Sky called the
straw vote. Jim moved the amended motion. Seconded by Tom. 18 in
favour. 8 opposed. 6 abstentions.
Jim moves the amended motion. Seconded by Tom Brown. Discussion
about various food ethics. Sky would like to make a friendly
amendment including the statement ‘explore ways to…” Jim accepts the
amended. Tom Brown accepts the friendly amendment. Jim read the
amended motion: Whereas the practice of animal agriculture represents
more than 50% of the climate changes we are now experiencing.
Whereas the top 15 preventable diseases are related to the
consumption of animal products. Whereas the factory farms and
industrial slaughterhouses are incredibly cruel to living beings.
Therefore be it resolved that Unicamp explore options to reduce the
amount of non-ethically sourced animal products, including dairy,
as much as possible and encourage the use of whole food plant
based nourishment options in all meal plans. 16 in favour. 1
opposed. 1 abstention CARRIED.
The next Annual General Meeting will be held at 1:30 2019 at Unicamp
of Ontario
Sky moves to Adjourn. Seconded by Avril Siddle. CARRIED

7

BOARD MOTIONS 2018-2019
Voting: The current board has a total of 6 members. A quorum for this group is 5 out of 6.
When there are absences, the vote is considered a vote by the executive, which is 4 members.
The quorum for the executive is 3 out of 4. Approvals are noted based on numbers present; this
does not reflect many absences; it is a result of having a small board this year.
There were 3 months in which there was not a quorum present at the Board meeting: March
(No motions approved), June, and July. As such, Motions made this year require approval by the
Membership OR re-visiting by the incoming 2019-2020 Board.
Minutes: Minutes for each month’s Board meeting can be found online from the website:
https://unicampofontario.ca/board/meetings/ There will also be a copy of Minutes available
during the AGM.
October 2018
The board passed a motion to allow 1 week and 1 weekend of dog-friendly time during the
2019 season. Family Camp 1 was designated as the dog-friendly week as it has been a popular
week among dog-owners. This change in dog-friendly time at camp was largely due to
numerous complaints regarding non-observance of our dog policy, and the time required by onsite staff to manage the related conflicts; the dog policy also was formed out of concern for
maintaining a natural environment where one might be able to observe native wildlife that
would otherwise be scared off by dogs. (Motion Approved Unanimously)
November 2018
Nov 12: To accept Michelle Mccomb as Camp manager for the year upcoming 2019.
(Motion Approved)
Nov 12: To go ahead with constructing steel roofs and that the work begin ASAP if that is
feasible and according to weather conditions. (Motion Approved)
Nov 17: That Unicamp hire Yvette Salinas as ED for the year 2018/2019 (Motion Approved)
December 2018
Dec 13: Moved that we accept the private rental by University of Guelph's Student Life team for
their Leadership Retreat:
When: Friday May 31, 12 noon, to Sunday June 2, 2 pm.
Terms: A minimum of $1250.00 ($25 per person per night, minimum 25 people), plus
the $200.00 cleaning fee and insurance costs. This includes access to accommodations,
the dining hall and the Program Centre.
NOTE: Accepting this rental would mean cancelling the Unicamp open house scheduled
for Saturday, June 1.
(Motion Approved)
Dec 29: To accept Kosu Boudreau as seasonal rep on the unicamp board to take effect
immediately.
(Motion Approved)

January 2019
Jan 4: Be it moved that the rate for a Lessee to rent one site for the whole season in year 2019
be set as $1,245.00 on their contract
(Motion Approved)
Jan 24: Motion to increase the following fees by round them up as noted
Children's Camp (excluding week 4): $523.68 to $530.00
Children's Camp week 4: $445.42 to $450.00
CIT/LIT: $1246.95 to $1250.00
Jouth $400.93 to $410.00
(Motion Approved)
Board approve $2000 for initial funds related to the 50th celebration including but not limited
to the production of a short video of an interview with Tom Brown and developing posters and
publications for the purposes of advertising and fund-raising for this event.
(Motion Approved Unanimously)
February 2019
Motion: To adopt the phrase “building our legacy” as part of the new logo to brand the 50th
anniversary fundraising campaign materials. We will not include 2019 as the date so that the
merchandise and material produced this year will have a longer shelf life.
(Motion Approved)
Motion: Upgrade WordPress website at an increase of cost from $ 60 per year to $108 per year
Passed by Executive
Motion: That the fire extinguisher testing and replacement of ventilation mesh projects be
completed by May 15, 2019.
(Motion Approved)
Motion: that $145,000 be released for staff compensation so that hiring can commence.
Passed by Executive
Motion: that we attempt to join Ontario Camp Association.
Investigate and begin the process of applying for membership.
(Motion Approved)
Motion: Everyone who joins Board and Senior Staff should take AODA training and information
added to Board manual.
(Motion Approved)
April 10 2019
Motion: Unicamp increase its liability coverage by $10 million (making liability coverage a total
of $15 million) by opting into Robertson Hall’s Umbrella Liability Policy (an additional fee of
$2,328 per year).
Policy details in separate document and summarized in ED Report
(Motion Approved)

May 12, 2019
Motion: Iris to become the representative of Unicamp in relation to our legal counsel.
Agreement signed by president. (Motion Approved)

June 9, 2019
An Accessible Shower will be designed and constructed in the area where the current outdoor
showers are located (by November 2019). This will be done in conjunction with Ed Langevin
and Norah Menzies. Passed by Executive
Dave’s Cottage: After reviewing the plans and discussing the two options (A and B), the board
has agreed to go ahead with the one-unit communal renovation of Dave’s Cottage, as outlined
in Plan B. Passed by Executive
Agreement with W. Gordon, Seasonal Camper: A Previous board agreed to reimburse Wanda
for her extensive “volunteer hours” by giving her a free seasonal camping site for 15 years . This
agreement was formalized and in a signed contract with that board, to be renewed yearly until
a Board decided to do otherwise. It seemed to be valued at the rate of $1000 for every year of
her 15 years of employment. Suggestion that there be a one-time financial settlement as a way
of bringing closure. Motion: Wanda will come back with a proposal to this board and a final
settlement will be negotiated. Passed by Executive

July 6, 2019 (All these motions were approved by Executive at the July meeting)
Motion: to approve Medication Policy with these modifications: there will be two places to lock
medication: in Tom's and in Summerhill (for the staff). Passed by Executive
Motion: To remove the tripping hazard around the Upper Fire Pit in order to level the ground
around it. There was consultation with the artist about this decision. Passed by Executive
Motion: that Building Permits be acquired for renovations to Dave's Cottage. Update on Dave’s
Cottage will be in ED Report. Passed by Executive

August 9, 2019
Settling with Wanda: To approve a payment of $4,000 to W. Gordon in order to close her
ongoing site contract with Unicamp. Henceforth she will be recognized as a seasonal camper
subject to the standard camper fees. (Motion Approved)

President’s report
Janice Canning
This has been a very exciting year for Unicamp. We celebrated our 50th
anniversary and raised funds for our building fund. All the achievements
happened because of the dedication of board members, Unicamp
Seasonals, our member congregations, staff, and friends of Unicamp. It
takes a village to create and maintain our Children’s camp and we have
been successful for 50 years!
I want to thank Lauren for her artistic design of the tree and in creating
and promoting our leaves to all who showed interest both at
congregations and at Unicamp in the welcome tent. Many people
remarked that the art scattered throughout the camp, the outhouses and
buildings create a welcoming and encouraging atmosphere for visitors. They are so amazed at the
communal effort that has been applied to creating the art. I wish to congratulate Lauren for her efforts
to encourage and involve everyone at camp.
I would further like to thank Iris and Sue for their amazing planning and execution of the 50th
anniversary weekend and for their efforts at continued fundraising. Many hours of contacting the
Unicamp alumni and founders created a great community energy. The making of the video and the
updating of our history brought so much meaning and understanding of our roots as Unitarians, and of
the volunteer work of so many to create the camp we know and love today. Building on our legacy, they
are visionaries of what a community can create. I commend them on their initiative to have
representatives in each congregation to
support Unicamp and be a liaison with
Unicamp board.
The staff we had this year was exemplary and
with the experience and knowledge of many
years of volunteering and working with the
running of the children’s camp, they showed,
once again, the value of teamwork when it
comes to supporting a camp for children. I
thank them for all the efforts at looking at our
policies and procedures, bringing our camp
into line with the requirements of the
Canadian camp association. Thank you for all
you do, the everyday running of the camp
takes diplomacy. Boundaries are maintained, and the expectations of a camp incorporating our
Unitarian principles as well as dealing with the emotional needs of children away from home were
superbly met. They comfort, listen and show deep compassion for our young campers and they show us
that Unicamp develops and encourages leadership in our congregations and at Unicamp.
We are growing up at 50 years and the board must maintain fiscal responsibility, be true to our seven
principles and show that our attention to policies and procedures moves us into the future with the

good of all the community in mind. The board chose to increase our insurance and to hire lawyers for
the times when good intentions may not be enough when challenges arise. The board, through Yvette,
Sue and Iris contacted so many congregations to clarify that Unicamp is listening to their suggestions, to
remind them of their membership and encouraged financial support through donations. It was clarified
that the member congregations are not liable to the camp actions and to ensure them that we have
increased our building and liability insurance and Unicamp stopped giving tours of the caves. We have
had discussions that board members are speaking on their own behalf and are not speaking for specific
congregations.
I thank Sky for her tireless work as treasurer. She has been a great support to align our 3 accounts to
one and to create better understanding of how we report our expenses so that we all can better
appreciate how the camp is run financially. She was a driving force for getting plans for the renovation
of Dave’s completed for the 50th for all to see and support.
Thank you to Jeff. His work on the brochure, the website and newsletters to our supporters has been
amazing. He is an accomplished photographer and his work enhances all our communications. Our
webpage was updated and is our official page where anyone can get information about Unicamp. He
donated photographs for the bundles that were auctioned off with great success. He has been the camp
photographer and gained the trust of the campers and leaders with his kind demeanor and respectful
presence.
He and Kosu created the seasonal newsletters and I applaud this initiative for better communication
with this caring group, some who have been here for over 30 years. Thank you to Kosu for her skill and
agility in building community. She has been a voice for the seasonal campers and is accomplished in
conflict resolution and mediation. This has been shown in her ability to develop trust with the camp
staff as well as with the seasonal campers. She is an invaluable asset to the board and to this camp. I
welcome her volunteering to this position.
This camp is a community, together we create a place for our Unitarian children to experience nature, to
discover themselves as they mature and grow and to learn about the 7 principles as experienced in
camp life.
Thank you to everyone. You the delegates who volunteer time and energy towards the guidance of this
camp, to the donors who help us to achieve our stewardship goals with the funds to support the
infrastructure and the training of staff, and to all the people who take part in our programs and events.
We all are responsible for the energy of this community. We are all supporting a dream that began 50
years ago. Thank you to those founders and supporters, those who have passed,and those who are here
to see the dream realized to this day. We need us all to hold this vision in our hearts and in our prayers,
meditations, rituals, services and actions. I thank you all for your continued support.
Janice Canning President

Long Range, Vice President, 50th Anniversary Committee
REPORT for 2018-2019
Iris K. Murray
LONG RANGE PLANNING
This is a mandated position and I am reporting to our membership on progress this year. I had
ordered some topographical maps, pasted them together and laminated them for our use. Contact
was made with the Conservation Authority who provided 3 small colour maps of camp. We
obtained confirmation that camp may give a name to our creeks on property. Further benefits
may be gained by working with the conservation authorities to preserve our ecosystem.
Unicamp has continued with the terms of the Forest Management Agreement. Our ash trees
remain at risk but we do not have the ash borer insect yet and we are trying to minimize exposure
by providing firewood and prohibiting people bringing in firewood. There has been no
recommendation to cut down our trees at this time. Certainly, some trees must be cut if they
pose a fall hazard. Long Range Plans should include obtaining cost estimates from qualified
professional(s) regarding the intermittent reinforcement of our stop logs, the raising and
resettling of the dorms on their foundations, and mapping our 13 streams in relation to where our
biowaste areas are located. The purpose of this step would not be to undertake any work but to
provide the Board with cost information so that planning and capital fundraising can be
conducted for larger sums.
Various methods of fundraising were discussed with the full Board over the past year. A
presentation was made by Dave Nixon using a powerpoint slide deck compiled by Yvette Salinas
at the Rotary Chapter in Shelburne this Spring. There are plans to speak with the Rotary Chapters
in Barrie. Without major grants, the Directors on the Board realize that Unicamp needs to keep a
sharp eye on our pricing, so that we keep pace with other small church camps, retreat centres and
comparable campgrounds.
On a personal vacation, I made a point of making a visit to the
UU camp in North Carolina called The Mountain and speaking
with their Ted Wisnieski, Executive Director and also his
Fundraising expert. Photographs from The Mountain, North
Carolina's UU camp were loaded onto google docs. Since then,
staff have participated in a conference call with their Executive
Director about common pitfalls and strategies for long term success. They are very helpful to
Unicamp and stated that it is imperative our ED attend the GA every year, to lobby for a grant
called the Endowment. Grants are available from various UU sources and Yvette Salinas is on
top of this file to follow-up.

VICE PRESIDENT
For individuals wanting to get a lift up to camp, there is a realization by the Board that Unicamp
cannot arrange carpools, nor be seen to be liable for arranging rides. However, an old FaceBook
group from 2006 was revived with 79 members active in connecting with one another. It is
hoped that as information is shared, that this may assist those who are needing a ride to get to
camp or to borrow equipment from one another from time to time. Please check the group called
‘Friends of Unicamp.’
Research was undertaken regarding outer space & this was one of our theme
weeks in 2019. A wealth of resource materials was collected to promote the
Star Gazing initiative including second hand books & paper tubes used as
telescopes. A publisher gave permission for free use (of certain pages) from
the book Night Skies of Canada, by Tamara Hartson. I prepared materials
about star gazing & made 38 learning kits including back issues of the
magazine Sky News and new star finders provided to us, for free from the
Dunlap program. I placed the kits & star gazing books on the shelves in the
dining hall. Support materials were given to staff to supplement the live
expertise provided by Mike Cormier.
We set up an info table for Unicamp at the Mid-Winter Retreat in February
with our promotion of the Legacy Leaves, a poem by Helen and displays on
laptops. Also notes were placed in the online website which lists the 7 Unitarian Congregations
of Greater Toronto (UCGT). This year, I attended Guelph, Mississauga, Peterborough and I
sat in awe when the Hamilton congregation devoted an entire service to Unicamp.
During April there was some work done regarding a better understanding of our insurance
coverages and in meeting with Toronto First Congregation during May. There was a small
outreach to the local Bruce trail club and plans to follow-up. On Canada Day weekend, I
escorted ten Syrians who were visiting camp on a day pass.
We have been accepted by a law firm which helps dozens of non-profits at less than the going
rate. This means that we have a contact person when we have a legal question.
In the VP role, I provided some support for our Executive Director regarding the wording of
policies, regarding research about Ontario Camping Association minimum standards and
regarding AODA, as this is the first year that we have sent in a Compliance Report.

50TH ANNIVERSARY
Iris made a number of cold calls looking for someone to take an aerial photograph. We were
very lucky to negotiate arrangements with Dave Kutschenreiter of Vivid Air / Effective Media
Solutions and Sky Dasey arranged the onsite filming June 7, 2019. The preparation before the
video shoot and the handling of the output were tasks taken up by Jeff Baker and this new item
may also be useful for us, to use in other ways.
Sue Berlove conceived of the amazing video and put hundreds of hours into negotiating
consensus on contentious matters. Also, support materials for representatives in each
congregation was undertaken by Sue Berlove. The nine minute video ‘Building on our Legacy’
was done by a professional for a $200 honorarium and has been widely viewed; but has not
given a corresponding increase in successful fundraising. Consideration is being given to
promoting local fundraising events throughout the Autumn.
The previous history of camp was edited. I have invited others who did help with the updates to
the history and the origin story of camp. Old keepsake materials donated by Ellen Pappenburg
and Elinor Knight have been placed into binders for a display of archives.
A good deal of time was spent to ensure that we
honoured those who have gone before us in terms
of approving the Legacy Tree, contacting our elders
and in terms of what formal acknowledgements
would be appropriate for our founders. Several
photographs which were enlarged and displayed in
binders proved to be very popular on display for
our visitors on the reunion weekend. I was
particularly impressed with the amount of interest
by young people in pouring over pictures of times gone by and various old tee-shirt designs.
Another aspect was putting the fun into fundraising. Without a core team working to co-ordinate
arrangements, the budget for the reunion celebrations was late in being finalized. Kendrew Pape
and Lauren Renzetti were invaluable in providing a framework and some tips for our small team
of Sue Berlove, Jenny Thomas Bojin, Michelle McComb and myself. Our new black hats
‘SINCE 1969’ features a flame cradled by blue hands with 7 stars, for our 7 principles.
A new poem was prepared well in advance by Helen Iacovino. I requested new lyrics for the
song Fifty Ways - these were superbly written / recorded by Jeff Mahoney and Colin Read.
These two items were part of kits prepared together with a vintage brochure, plus a new booklet
prepared by Jeff Baker, Helen and Lauren. The anniversary items were bundled into a plastic
reusable brief case. With the main valuable item of original photographs by Jeff Baker, these

portfolios were auctioned for donations of $60-$100 and competitive bidding fun added by Katya
Schmeid.
Michelle McComb prepared a 50 year long timeline on a white ribbon which was very popular
for photo opportunities and proved to be a cost-effective bit of fun too. At the welcome tent, an
effort was made to gain new email addresses for our mail chimp newsletter. Unicamp staff
coordinated by Jenny Thomas Bojin were outstanding in feeding and handling the record number
of visitors who attended the reunion weekend.
Submitted by Iris K. Murray
August 2019

August 20th, 2019

Treasurer’s Report 2018,
Prepared by Sky Dasey
submitted for the Sept 2019 AGM for Unicamp of Ontario
Self location:
My name is Sky Dasey. I am a member at Grand River Unitarian Congregation, a seasonal
camper, as well as having parented two kids through more than 30 weeks of kids camp. I am
completing my final year on the Board of Directors, having served you as the Vice President,
for 2016, President for 2017 and 2018, and the Treasurer for this, the 2019 season.
A brief overview:
I am reporting on the financial summaries for the 2018 year, touching on the current year, and
making recommendations for the upcoming board and you, our delegates, to consider.
Unicamp of Ontario is in an excellent financial position. We finished 2018 with a net revenue of
$327,445.18 (up from $318,402 in 2017) and net expenditures of $292,964.34 (up from
292,393.00 in 2017) for a total excess of revenue of $34,480.84 (up from $26,009.00 in 2017).
Congratulations to our board and hardworking staff for these noteworthy accomplishments.
Upcoming expenses:
We plan to cap our remaining buildings in steel and renovate Dave’s cabin. Our expenses
include fair and equitable staff compensation, food, building upkeep and renovations, and a
variety of other seasonal and year-round projects. These expenses are rising.
Income generation:
This year our board members and staff have done some comparison pricing and we are
confident that we offer an exceptionally cost-effective services to our users. We have only had
marginal fee increases in the past decade. As such, it is my personal recommendation that we
consider a 10% increase on all of our fees in the 2020 season. I support offering volunteer
and fee-offset opportunities in order to maintain accessible options for those with fixed
incomes.
This year the Forever Fund opened. This allows us to access $45000 previously held in trust.
It is my hope that we will not squander this, as it makes up a considerable amount of our
reserves.
We are working to secure donations and support from our larger communities to provide for
our long-term needs. After actively fundraising, and with solid fiscal stewardship it is my hope
that we will be in a secure place moving forward.

2019 Highlights
Prepare and ratify a budget for the 2019 year: done
Our entire accounting team worked together to revise our budget format so that the lines agree
with our Simply Accounting software. Hereto this was not standard practice for this
organization, and henceforth it is my strong recommendation to use our accounting framework
as the template for budget creation. Further refining may be needed, particularly as we work
with the limitations of our software to separate out certain types of purchases.
Submit the financials to the CRA: done
Due to challenges securing records from Tangerine, we filed 2 weeks late. Our accountant
reassured us that this is well within acceptable timelines and we filed before any warning were
received from the CRA. Thanks to Vera Monk, and Mel Horvath-Lucid along with Ian Edmunds
Accounting for their efforts to this end.
Consolidate our accounts: in process
When I took on this role, there were funds held in three institutions with out of date signing
authorities. The Tangerine account has been closed and the funds moved to CT/TD. Our
Meridian accounts were in term deposits; as they mature, they are being moved to a savings
account. The last will mature in 2020 and those funds will be moved to CT/TD for ease of
banking and liability protection in the future. I will work with the next treasurer to ensure that
this two-year process is completed. It is my hope that once done, future boards will meet our
responsibilities with ease.
Secure a credit card tied to the organization: done
We have secured a $10000 limit credit card tied to the organization (not the rotating staff nor
board members). $10000 has been put into a term deposit as ongoing security against this
card. This is a first for Unicamp of Ontario, and will, I hope, unwind some messy historical
accounting issues.

In Summary, thank you for the opportunity to our member congregations and delegates,
to the many exceptional board members, staff and volunteers I have stood beside; it
has been an honour to serve you in this exciting capacity for the past four years.
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A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

Independent Practitioner's Review Engagement Report

To the Directors of Unicamp of Ontario Incorporated
I have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Unicamp of Ontario
Incorporated ("the Organization") that comprise the statement of financial position as
at December 31, 2018 and the statements of operations and net assets and cash flows
for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit
organizations, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Practitioner's Responsibility
My responsibility is to express a conclusion on the accompanying financial statements
based on my review. I conducted my review in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted standards for review engagements, which require me to comply with relevant
ethical requirements.
A review of financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
standards for review engagements is a limited assurance engagement. The practitioner
performs procedures, primarily consisting of making inquiries of management and
others within the entity, as appropriate, and applying analytical procedures, and
evaluates the evidence obtained.
The procedures performed in a review are substantially less in extent than, and vary in
nature from, those performed in an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted auditing standards. Accordingly, I do not express an audit opinion
on these financial statements.

P 416-931-5077
www.epcaccounting.ca

edmonds professional corporation

260 Spadina Ave., Suite 504
Toronto ON M5T 2E4

Basis for Qualified Conclusion
In common with many not-for-profit organizations, the Organization derives revenue
from donations, the completeness of which is not susceptible to satisfactory verification
using review procedures.
Accordingly, my verification of these revenues was limited to the amounts recorded in
the records of the Organization and I was not able to determine whether any
adjustments might be necessary to donations, excess of revenue over expenditures and
cash flows from operations for the year ended December 31, 2018, current assets and
net assets as at December 31, 2018.

Qualified Conclusion
Based on my review, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis
for Qualified Conclusion paragraph, nothing has come to my attention that causes me
to believe that the financial statements do not present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Unicamp of Ontario Incorporated as at December 31, 2018, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

Edmonds Professional Corporation
Authorized to practice public accounting by the
Chartered Professional Accountants of Ontario
Toronto, Canada
July 23, 2019

edmonds professional corporation

Unicamp of Ontario Incorporated
Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31,
2018

2017

$ 134,180
962
2,118
137,260

$ 135,048
479
2,118
137,645

82,816

71,564

310,261

296,529

530,337

505,738

5,482
6,760
1,217
13,459

6,879
5,908
4,754
17,541

Restricted donations (Note 6)

16,237

16,237

Forever fund (Note 7)

45,011
74,707

45,011
78,789

455,630

426,949

$ 530,337

$ 505,738

Assets
Current
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Term deposits (Note 3)
Land and equipment (Note 4)

Liabilities
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 5)
HST payable
Deposits

Net assets

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:
, Director
, Director

Unicamp of Ontario Incorporated
Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
For the year ended December 31,
2018
Revenue
Accommodations
Camp
Donations
Interest
Membership dues
Solar panels
Expenses
Advertising
Board
Camp food
Camp operations
Camp supplies
Insurance
Interest and bank charges
Office
Professional fees
Program expenses
Property taxes
Repairs and maintenance
Rent
Salaries and wages
Utilities
Amortization

$ 52,582
210,083
26,545
1,546
60,122
5,303
356,181

2017
$

62,533
162,967
25,915
2,708
55,597
8,682
318,402

Excess of revenue over expenditures for the year

110
550
34,533
20,036
416
11,180
8,315
80
16,930
2,084
4,647
8,375
258
201,269
11,154
7,563
327,500
28,681

4,503
3,655
34,500
33,892
3,579
11,862
3,283
1,835
14,632
3,113
7,551
6,982
743
144,825
9,361
8,077
292,393
26,009

Net assets, beginning of year

426,949

400,940

$ 455,630

$ 426,949

Net assets, end of year

Unicamp of Ontario Incorporated
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31,
2018

2017

$ 28,681

$ 26,009

7,563
(1,252)
34,992

8,077
(1,323)
32,763

(483)
(1,397)
852
(3,537)
30,427

12,040
1,527
15,633
(4,258)
57,705

(21,295)
(10,000)
(31,295)

(4,289)
(4,289)

Financing
Change in restricted donations

-

1,518

Net change in cash

(868)

54,934

135,048

80,114

$134,180

$ 135,048

Cash provided by (used in)
Operations
Excess of revenue over expenditures for the year
Items not affecting cash
Amortization
Accrued interest
Net changes in non-cash working capital
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
HST recoverable/payable
Deposits
Investing
Purchase of equipment (Note 4)
Purchase of term deposits

Cash, beginning of year
Cash, end of year

Unicamp of Ontario Incorporated
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2018
1.

NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION
Unicamp of Ontario Incorporated ("the Organization") was incorporated without
share capital in the Province of Ontario on February 10, 1969 under the
provisions of the Ontario Business Corporations Act. The Organization received
status as a registered charitable organization under the Income Tax Act and as
such is exempt from income taxes provided certain disbursement requirements
are met.
The Organization provides a safe and welcoming seasonal camp and spiritual
retreat to a diverse community as well as providing cottage rentals to various
members of the community.

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Accounting
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian
accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations. Outlined below are those
policies considered particularly significant for the Organization.
Revenue Recognition
The Organization uses the deferral method of accounting for contributions.
Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or
receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and
collection is reasonably assured. Restricted contributions are deferred and
recognized as revenue when the related expenses are recognized.
All other revenues are recognized on the accrual basis.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian accounting
standards for notfor-profit organizations requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amount of revenue and expenditures
during the year. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Significant areas requiring the use of management estimates relate to
amortization of property and equipment.

Unicamp of Ontario Incorporated
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2018
2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Land and Equipment
Land and equipment with a total project cost in excess of $1,500 is recorded at
cost less accumulated amortization. Contributed property is recorded at the fair
value at the date of the gift. When land and equipment no longer contributes to
the Organization's ability to provide services, its carrying amount is written down
to its residual value.
The Organization amortizes its equipment on the diminishing balance method at
the following rates per annum:
Building and facilities

4%

Furniture and equipment

20%

Solar panels

30%

Prior to 2011 the Organization did not capitalize equipment.
Financial Instruments
The Organization initially measures its financial assets and liabilities at fair value.
The Organization subsequently measures its financial assets and financial
liabilities at amortized cost using the straight-line method.
Financial assets measured at amortized cost include accounts receivable and
term deposits which consist of GICs with original maturities more than one year
and less than or equal to five years. Financial liabilities measured at amortized
cost include accounts payable and accrued liabilities.
Financial assets measured at cost or amortized cost are tested for impairment
when there are indicators of impairment. The amount of the write-down, if any, is
recognized in excess of expenses over revenue. Reversals of impairment are
recorded to the extent that the value has increased, up to the amount that would
have been reported at the date of the reversal had the impairment not been
recognized previously. The amount of the reversal is recognized in excess of
expenses over revenue.
Contributed Services
Volunteers have contributed time and services to assist the Organization in the
delivery of its activities. Because of the difficulty of determining their fair value,
contributed services are not recognized in the financial statements.

Unicamp of Ontario Incorporated
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2018
3.

LINE OF CREDIT
The Organization has a $40,000 operating line of credit secured by two term
deposits with a value of $49,217 (2017 - $48,253) and a General Security
Agreement over all assets. The effective interest rate was 4.45% at December
31, 2018 (2017 - 3.20%) which consists of the bank's prime interest rate plus 0.5%.
As at December 31, 2018, there was $Nil (2017 - $Nil) against this line of credit.

4.

LAND AND EQUIPMENT

Land
Buildings and facilities
Furniture and equipment
Solar panels

5.

Cost
$ 255,000
34,103
27,184
114,654

Accumulated
Amortization
$
5,923
9,080
105,677

2018 Net
Book Value
$ 255,000
28,180
18,104
8,977

2017 Net
Book Value
$ 255,000
18,741
9,964
12,824

$ 430,941

$ 120,680

$ 310,261

$ 296,529

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES
Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities are the amounts payable in
respect to government remittances of $Nil (2017 - $Nil).

6.

RESTRICTED DONATIONS
Restricted donations consist of funds allocated for building improvements,
bursaries for campers, and other fundraising projects.

Balance, beginning of year
Contributions received during the year
Contributions expensed during the year
Contributions used for equipment purchases

2018
$ 16,237
-

2017
$ 14,719
2,804
(1,286)
-

Balance, end of year

$ 16,237

$ 16,237

Unicamp of Ontario Incorporated
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2018
7.

FOREVER FUND
The forever fund consists of donations for which the capital is externally
restricted from use by the Organization until 2019. There are no restrictions on
the use of the income derived from these funds.

000000Unicamp Of Ontario

000000Proposed Operating Budget
000000revised
2017
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Item #

Description

2019 Budget

4010

INCOME
ACCOMMODATION / MEALS / RENTALS
Accommodation - Camping , Dorms, Cottages

-

47,000.00-

4010

Off season rentals

-

10,000.00-

4024

Seasonal rentals

-

42,000.00-

4025

Meals

-

50,000.00-

Sub-total - Accommodation/Meals/Rentals

-

149,000.00-

-

125,000.0013,000.00112,000.00-

Program fees
Sub-Total - Program Fees
SALES & MISCELLANEOUS

-

15,000.0015,000.00-

Sales (tuck shop, mugs, t-shirts, etc.)

-

2,000.00-

Sub-Total - Sales & Miscellaneous

-

2,000.00-

Solar electricity income
Sub-Total - Solar Panel
MEMBERSHIP / DONATIONS / OTHER

-

10,000.0010,000.00-

4101
4102

Memberships (16 congregations)
Donations -receipted
Donations- not receipted

-

800.0010,000.001,000.00-

4103
4040

Donations from Charitable organizations
Interest income

-

5,000.001,200.00-

4200

Grants - summer student

-

10,000.00-

Sub-Total - Memberships / Donations / Other

-

28,000.00-

-

316,000.00-

7035
7040
7050

EXPENSES
STAFF PAYROLL
Staff Payroll - part time
Staff Payroll - full time
Staff Payroll CPP, EI, Vac Pay, WSIB

-

111,000.0068,000.0015,000.00-

7045

Staff Payroll - Maintenance Manager (ADP)

-

1,500.00-

Sub-Total - Staff Payroll

-

195,500.00-

PROGRAM COSTS
Staff and volunteer education/training

-

2,500.00-

Programming Supplies and Equipment

-

8,000.00-

Sub-Total - Program Costs

-

10,500.00-

CAMP FEES
4020
4031

Children's camp: LIT, CIT, Jouth, Out Trips
Children's Camps - cost of discounts
Sub-total - Camp Fees
PROGRAM FEES

4030

SOLAR PANEL

Total Income

6070

FOOD

000000Unicamp Of Ontario

000000Proposed Operating Budget
000000revised
2017
Feb 20, 2017 at 8pm_x000D_page 2 of

Item #

Description

2019 Budget

5010

Food purchases

-

38,000.00-

Sub-Total - Food & Miscellaneous Costs

-

38,000.00-

50th FUND (incl.movie and plaques)

-

3,000.00-

Operations expenses - Maintenance and Minor
Repairs and Upkeep

-

8,000.00-

Website hosting and maintenance

-

1,500.00-

6040

Office Supplies and expenses

-

4,000.00-

7060

Postage

-

1,000.00-

6010

Travel and Vehicle expenses
Sub-Total - Operational Costs
UTILITIES & OTHER PROPERTY COSTS

-

6,000.0023,500.00-

7070

Utilities - Hydro, Propane, Internet

-

12,000.00-

7080

Utilities - Phone

-

1,500.00-

ON Clean Energy Benefit rebate)

-

100.00-

Water testing/treatment
Property maintenance & repair

-

600.004,000.00-

Sub-Total - Utilities & Other Property Costs

-

18,000.00-

Emergency Fund / Contingency

-

3,000.00-

8000

Board expenses (training, travel)

-

3,000.00-

6090

Ammortization of Capital Assets

-

600.00-

6030

Membership Fee (UUC)

-

350.00-

Sub-Total - General Costs

-

5,750.00-

OPERATION EXPENSES
6000

7020

GENERAL COSTS

BANKING, INSURANCE & TAX COSTS
7000

Prof. Fees (Accountant, Bookeeper, Lawyer, etc)

-

20,000.00-

6020

Bank charges (CC, service charges, tax fee, etc.)
Insurance (liability)

-

6,000.007,000.00-

Realty taxes + other

-

5,000.00-

Refunds

-

-

HST paid on purchases

-

100.00-

PST paid on purchases

-

-

-

GST paid on purchases

-

-

-

HST (PST & GST) rebate

-

4,000.00-

Sub-Total - Banking, Insurance & Tax Costs

-

34,100.00-

-

325,350.00-

-

9,350.00-

Insurance (board)
-

Seasonal Chair, AGM Report 2018/19
Submitted by: Kosu Boudreau
Hello, fellow Unicampers. Please, accept this report as a humble contribution to the
2018/19 AGM. I am new to the Unicamp Board, but like many of you, have deep and
nourishing roots with this land and community. I offer these reflections in the spirit of
open dialogue and to facilitate deeper connections.
I accepted the offer to join the Unicamp Board as Seasonal Chair last winter in response
to a call for additional Board members in the camp newsletter.
Throughout 2018/2019, the Board struggled to recruit sufficient number of volunteers to
establish a robust Board, with a sufficient number of voters to meet quorum. As a result,
most of the decisions being presented at this AGM are executive motions, made by a very
small group of hard-working volunteers. These motions are now being presented for your
input and delegate voting. It is a difficult task to represent the diverse interests and needs
of the constituents that make up this community. As the Seasonal Chair, I have tried to
focus on understanding, advocating and speaking for the needs of Seasonal Campers as it
relates to the Charter.
Unicamp of Ontario was incorporated as a non-profit organization in 1969 with the
mandate to:
organise, operate and maintain camps with related services for Unitarian
religious training of children and to provide, operate and maintain facilities for
church and leadership conferences and seminars;
Seasonal Campers have been welcomed to Unicamp as a way to support this mission, by
providing stable financial support, volunteer engagement and a demonstrated interest in
Unitarian Universalist children’s and adult programming.
The following are three broad areas that I have identified as topics of interest regarding
Seasonal Campers at Unicamp for this AGM.
Relationships
When we describe Unicamp as part of an ‘interdependent web of creation’ we are
referring to the complex relationships of people and land that weave together to make us
the unique entity that we are. Seasonal Campers play an important role in the life and
continuity of Unicamp culture. Unfortunately, in the last year, I have heard Seasonal
Campers described by a variety of people in less than positive ways. I have heard
descriptors such as “entitled’, “privileged”, “not giving back” and/or “not invested in
children’s programs”. I am sharing this information not as a way to point fingers or
provoke a debate, but to uncover what seems to be an ongoing point of contention
amongst a significant number of Unicampers, staff and Seasonal Campers. There seems
to be a breakdown in trust and/or understanding in some these relationships.
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Are Seasonal Campers invested in their relationship with the mission of Unicamp – i.e.
UU programming, governance and preserving the land? Actions seem to indicate ‘yes’,
although perhaps more evidently in some ways over others. This year, Seasonal Campers
donated $6,410 to purchase leaves on the Legacy tree to support the building
fund…exceeding the goal of $5,000, or the equivalent of one leaf per seasonal site. Four
of the current Board members are Seasonal Campers. Although this may represent an
imbalance in representation in our governance, it also demonstrates that there is a deep
commitment and connection to Unicamp shared by many of the Seasonals, enough to
override the discomfort of lengthy, monthly meetings and endless to-do tasks that Board
members are required to undertake.
So then, where is the disconnect between the Camper’s stated intentions and the
seemingly common (mis)perception regarding Seasonal Camper’s values? This leads me
to my second point:
Communication
Communication can make or break relationships. Although my family has a long history
with Unicamp, I have had a seasonal site for only three years. Some of the language I
have experienced on the Board has not felt welcoming for Seasonal Campers. When we
start to rely too much on the language of finance…for instance, describing sites as
‘interchangeable, one year contracts’ rather than also seeing them as sanctuaries and ‘safe
places’ for people, or placing more emphasis on how much money people are willing to
donate versus how much value they offer to the cultural richness of community - we
diminish the investment that Seasonal Campers have made to build roots here, forge
meaningful bonds of attachment and shape spaces that contribute to the beauty and safety
of our collective space. I suggest that as we move into our AGM discussions around
important issues such as insurance obligations, property maintenance, police checks,
building construction, camp safety and accessibility issues (to name a few), we are
thoughtful of the language we use to describe our relationships to the people, place and
the things that make up Unicamp.
Which leads me to the last point I would like to discuss:
Access and Equity
A number of people have expressed concern to me about long waiting lists to get a
seasonal site, the equity in the allocation of the sites, and the waste in having seasonal
sites that are left unattended and/or underutilized for long stretches of time. I am guilty of
the latter myself….as a busy grad student and professional, commuting back and forth to
Toronto, a with a dog at home that needs watching, there have – and will - be extended
periods of time when my site sits empty. I am sure other campers would love to have the
opportunity to enjoy the peace and quiet of my lovely site in the Pines. This criticism,
about underutilizing prime space at Unicamp, can feel sharp and unfair - after all
Seasonal Campers pay for the privilege of having access to their site throughout most of
the season and therefore contribute much needed resources to support Unicamp programs
($42,000 in revenue this year, slightly more than all other accommodations in total.)
However, I suggest that we pause and look at this in a new way. Perhaps, we would like
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to build stronger relationships with others who share our common interests? Or we may
want to look at ways we can become more involved in other aspects of camp life, such as
children’s camp or adult programs. After all, we are a Unitarian Universalist community,
and this is different that a real estate development or a gated private property.
If we were to look back at the two things I mentioned earlier, relationships and
communication, we may consider that sharing our sites is actually a good thing to do for
all of us…and doing good things make us feel good and lets other people feel good too. I
know that site sharing is happening already. That is how my partner and I started as
Seasonal Campers, sharing Alta’s site. She opened her trailer as well as her space for us.
Sky wrote in the last newsletter about how she began sharing space on her site when her
children grew up and suddenly there was more room. I saw large groups of young adults
laughing and connecting at Wanda’s site over the 50th anniversary. How wonderful it is to
provide gathering space for the young adults who will be our next generation of leaders at
Unicamp. And when I reached out to other Seasonal Campers to share their sites over the
50th anniversary weekend, everyone I asked readily agreed and offered up space.
Seasonal Campers have shown that they are generous, caring, and connected Unicampers.
Nevertheless, collectively, we may need to find better, and perhaps more structured, ways
to share our land and resources. If we start considering our site as our private retreat
space rather than part of a collective body, than we may start to lose connection with the
broader mandate for Unicamp – supporting UU programs.
In closing, I want to say how grateful I am to be part of this community. We will need to
vote on what may be some challenging decisions at this AGM, including increased fees,
seasonal site changes, building construction, and camp accreditation, to name a few. I
have confidence that we can figure this out together. I believe that we all want some of
the same things… a place where we can feel safe, a place where we feel that we belong
and a place where we can be free to be who we are, whether that is alone or in a group. I
know this a place where all these things can happen.
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A Report on Fundraising and Event Planning
For Unicamp’s 50th Anniversary
By Sue Berlove
About 8 months ago I began to volunteer to help Unicamp. In this report to the AGM I wanted to
highlight how I contributed to the fundraising goal for the 50th Anniversary, and to raise funds to
renovate Dave’s Cottage.
This year the outreach to Fellowships and Congregations had a focus on the 50th and our Fundraising
Campaign.
 In the Spring 2019 I produced a nine-minute video and conducted the interview with Tom
Brown, with the aim to promote Unicamp and motivate people to donate.
 Reached out to each group by recruiting individuals to liaise between Unicamp and their
Church/Fellowship.
 Explained our fundraising goal and invited them to host a fundraising event in their churches.
 Provided ideas, resources and support to people who took on the liaison and host role
 Promoted the Legacy Tree project—by using these events to get the word out to individuals who
would be interested in donating a leaf.
Fundraising Took Place in many Congregations and Fellowships.
 Hamilton used their Sunday Collection to raise funds for Unicamp
 Huronia Fellowship focused their fundraising on asking people to donate in memory of Warren
Andrews, an active contributor to Unicamp who was also active in the fellowship.
 Activities were held in Spring 2019 at Don Heights, Peterborough, Neighborhood, Niagara
Fellowship. Grand River will do fundraising in the Fall
We Hosted a Successful Civic Holiday Weekend Celebration
 Organized a small group into our planning committee—Michelle, Jenny, Iris, Sue and Yvette
 Chaired planning committee meetings, wrote up minutes of discussions to keep the group on
track; Contributed to program ideas and creating a daily schedule,
 Helped divide the tasks so that volunteers had an area of responsibility and tracked agenda
items to make sure all details were monitored
 Coordinated the Saturday concert--recruited the musicians to play; helped them set up
 Coordinated the use and set up of the Welcome Tent; provided materials and a way to make
name tags—so everyone could make their own
 Crafted a written schedule for the weekend to post and distribute to participants.
 Provided volunteers with necessary instruction and documentation to do their jobs.
 Planned and coordinated the selling of tickets for the two raffles and recruited volunteers to
help on site.

Communications Chair Report, August 2019 — Jeff Baker
This summer I had the privilege of being at camp during much of July, during which time I spent hours observing and
photographing Children’s Camp staff and campers in their daily programs and routines. Any reservations I may have had
about dedicating time and energy to volunteering on the Unicamp board of directors vanished as I witnessed the joy
experienced by these campers, guided by their counselors and supported by the rest of the camp staff team. The special
relationships that blossom between counsellors and campers at Unicamp is truly a joy to behold, but perhaps the most
joyous and fulfilling part of this time at camp was seeing children revelling in being active outdoors, in a natural setting
where respect for the environment and our web of existence is cherished and honoured.
As we celebrate our 50th anniversary and look back at '50 Years of Believing in Summer', I'll also be looking back at this
summer’s Children's Camp weeks and reflecting on how far we've come, the staff and volunteers who’s hard work and
dedication made this season's Children's Camps a success, and how the lives of 170 children campers have been
transformed by the magic of our Unicamp.
And I emerge with a renewed commitment to my role as member of this board and a deeper understanding of the
importance of the work we are doing here.
As the Unicamp Communications Chair I have striven to use my design and photography skills to create professionallooking communications that maintain Unicamp ‘brand’ continuity.
My accomplishments during my time on the 2018-19 Unicamp board include the following:













Maintained the Unicamp website, including updating webpages as required and supplying original photos;
Designed, edited and published Unicamp newsletters/updates—including two seasonal campers’ newsletters—
which were distributed to our subscriber mailing list via Mail Chimp (an automated email marketing platform);
Added a ‘Seasonals’ section to the Unicamp website, to provide information of interest to our Seasonal Campers,
including permanent links to the Seasonal Campers’ newsletters;
Updated the Unicamp site map, and created a 2nd site map indicating the locations of seasonal sites;
Compiled, designed, and edited the 2019 Unicamp Brochure—based on an original design layout by Tony
Rapoport—including designing the cover page and contributing original photographs; *
Maintained our MailChimp mailing list, adding and removing subscribers as necessary;
Captured many high-quality photos of Unicamp, including many documenting our children's camps, which I will
contribute to the Unicamp archive for future use in promotional communications;
Maintained our Instagram and Facebook accounts, frequently uploading topical photographs and commentary;
Ensured that media release forms were signed for any identifiable individuals appearing in photographs used in
our newsletters or brochure, or on our website and social media accounts;
Printed several original children’s camps photos and posted them in the dining hall;
Provided materials and editorial consultation for the video “Unicamp—Building on Our Legacy”;
Helped fellow board member Iris Murray create the unofficial “Friends of Unicamp of Ontario” Facebook group,
where Unicamp users can post photos not vetted by Unicamp of Ontario Inc.†

* The release of the printed version 2019 Unicamp Brochure was delayed due to technical challenges related to the
brochure’s re-design, and print-proofing issues. The online pdf version was released mid-February, while hard copies
were shipped at the end of March. For 2020, the goal will be to have printed brochures available by February 1st.
† With over 700 followers, the “Unicamp of Ontario” Facebook page will continue to be a primary source of official
Unicamp information and announcements about Unicamp programming, and act as a promotional vehicle for all official
Unicamp activities. Unlike the unofficial “Friends of Unicamp of Ontario” Facebook group, only individuals for whom
media release forms have been signed—or who have otherwise given consent—will appear on our official Facebook
page and/or Instagram account.
Jeff Baker
Communications Chair
2018-19 Unicamp Board of Directors

Executive Director’s Report 2019
Yvette Salinas
This has been an incredible year for me: one of growth and learning, even simply learning about
Unicamp itself as I help guide the organization into its future. Throughout all this time, the
Board, Staff, and I have laid down the foundation for important work that will ensure Unicamp’s
status and compliance as a nonprofit charity organization.
Insurance: One of the first big tasks I had was to secure Insurance for this year. This included
responding to the Engineer Report done through our Insurerer, Robertson Hall, that needed to be
dealt with in order to continue to be covered by Insurance. The most notable action was
removing the Caves from our programming offering, until Unicamp is able to install handrails
and additional measures that will ensure the safety of all who enter the caves.
As we learned more about protecting Unicamp as an organization, we learned that the best
solution would be to opt-in to the Umbrella Liability plan, which provides coverage for civil
damage judgements in catastrophic and multiple injury claims. Our Liability Policy Renewal
cost was $3,840 -- the Umbrella Policy was an additional $2,328. What is covered by our
Insurance Provider can be found in the Delegate Package.
This also led to long and important conversations whether our institutional members would ever
be legally held responsible for Unicamp programming and infrastructure, and any issues that
could arise from either. This is out of concern that our member congregations may ever be
potentially listed as additional defendants in a lawsuit. As you have seen (will see), Unicamp is
committed to our members, and is developing a letter releasing any of our members
congregations from legal responsibility of any occurence taking place at Unicamp. Once
reviewed by the incoming Board, we will bring it to our legal counsel, to ensure it is a binding
letter that protects all of our members.
Changes to Policy: Updated policy to ensure we’re meeting our legal obligations as well as allow
for on-the-ground implementation with our staff. Updated Drug and Alcohol Policy (record of
“strikes” kept for employees), offering a supportive rather than restrictive environment. Updated
Dog Policy reflects law re: Service Animals in Ontario. Updated Medical Policy, with
information about where medications are stored for Kid’s campers and staff members. Many
policies were developed with the onus that they’d be reviewed at the end of the season, to see
which policies made sense and which were difficult to enforce. This will be a task to do with the
Camp Director and other staff members at the end of the season.
Let’s Camp Another big task I had at the beginning was helping with the changeover to our new
Booking and Reservation site, Let’s Camp. Information about each individual campsite, dorm,
cottage, and program was meticulously entered. This website has not been without its issues, but
the development team has been responsive to our needs and questions. I want to explore options

for our reservation system that reflect Unicamp’s dual needs of booking accommodations and
registering for programs, including Kid’s Camp. This could be continuing with Let’s Camp,
smoothing out any issues around bookings and reservations, and use the handy information
gathered through the site--such as which were our most popular accommodations, programs, and
meals--to help Unicamp grow.
Accessibility: Much of our fundraising and property considerations have been focused on
Accessibility. Because of the Accessibility for Ontarians with Disability Act (AODA),
organizations throughout Ontario are expected to be compliant in providing for those with
Disabilities. Filled out the AODA Compliance Report for Unicamp for the first time; this report
of our number of employees and infrastructure needs to be done yearly, and . Although there is
much to learn regarding AODA, with training and experience--as well as the generous offer of
time from many campers with knowledge about best practices in Accessibility--I’m sure
Unicamp will prove itself up to the challenge.
Our Relationship with the CUC: Unicamp has always worked with the Canadian Unitarian
Council. The Board and I have officially signed Unicamp up as an Affiliate of the CUC, giving
Unicamp access to some of the CUC’s resources and a better connection to the CUC’s network
of local, regional and national UU organizations. I was able to attend the 2019 CUC AGM and
do a short powerpoint presentation there. I look forward to developing this relationship further,
sharing information and resources between our two important Canadian Unitarian organization,
especially as it reflects on my Outreach work for Unicamp.
In conclusion, I do want to take a moment to thank the Staff at Unicamp for the hard work and
love I’ve seen this season. I think of Vera, who juggles so much but can also be available to take
care of anything that comes up. I think of Terry, so resourceful and knowledgeable in his role as
Property Manager, but with a deep caring for Unicamp and Unicampers that can be felt by all. I
especially want to thank my Big Three--Arden, Jenny, and Michelle--who have had to navigate
so much onsite, and still have accomplished wonderful Kid’s Camp and Family Camp
programming. Meanwhile, the Board members--for better or for worse--gave so much of their
time and energy to the organization, I feel grateful for the gift of their presence.
When I began this role, Mel offered me many pieces of advice. One that stuck with me is the
final one: you will not be able to it all. Indeed, I haven't. There's so much to do, so much that I
wish I had the hours for. The reality of leading an organization such as Unicamp is that once our
season began, there were so many tasks that required immediate attention. But I find comfort in
all that has been down, all the groundwork I have laid with this current Board for important work
and to help Unicamp grow.
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Seasonal
Seasonal Campers (adults)

55

Seasonal Camper Sites

33

Income from Seasonals:

$42,000

Programming
Kid's & Youth Camp Registration Numbers
Week 1: Mystery

42

Week 2: Various Themes

43

Week 3: Harry Potter

59

Week 4: Space

29

CIT

7

LIT

6

Jouth

24

TOTAL

210

50th Anniversary Weekend
Visitors Accommodated Onsite
August 2

117

August 3

123

August 4

103

Total Day Passes

90

Expenses for 50th Celebration

$1,852.06

Funds Raised (Swag, Donations)

$1,625.00

Staff
Full-Time Staff Members (Year-Round)
Seasonal Staff Members
Canada Summer Jobs (CSJ) Funding
Staff Roles Covered by CSJ Funding

4
30
$31,641.00
8

Financial
Income from Accommodations Bookings (Let's Camp)
Total Visitors (so far)
Private Rentals in 2019
Income (so far) from Private Rentals

$40,000
2320
5
$12,594.00

Outreach & Fundraising
Member Congregations

15

Membership Fees Collected 2019

$693.00

Congregations ED visited in 2019:

5

Expenses (so far) for Legacy Tree Project
Legacy Fund (Fundraising from Legacy Leaves)
Total Leaves Sold

$2,660.58
$30,225.00
172

Funding from CUC (Sharing our Faith)

$3,000

Amount Raised for Sharing Our Faith

$55.50

General Liability - Basic coverage for legal liability against your organization arising
out of bodily injury or property damage caused as a result of your activities,
ministries and operations. This basic form of coverage should be expanded to
include most, or all, of the following additional coverage extensions.
General Liability Coverage Includes:
$5,000,000 Minimum Coverage Limit
• Mental Anguish And Mental Injury
• Incidental Medical Malpractice,
Including Paid Or Volunteer Camp
Nursing Services
• Extended Property Damage (Including
Use Of Force To Protect Persons And
Property)
• Personal Injury - Libel, Slander,
Defamation, Malicious Prosecution,
Abuse Of Process Etc.
• Extended Personal Injury Discrimination, Harassment And
Humiliation
• Products And Completed Operations
• Advertising Injury - Coverage for legal
liability arising out of your oral or written
publication of material causing "economic
damage" or "personal injury" to a third
party
• Incidental Broadcasting, Publishing
And Telecasting
• Compensatory, Punitive, Aggravated
And Exemplary Damages (Covers All
Civil Awards Insurable By Law)
• Legal Fees And Defense Costs In
Excess Of Policy Limits
• Prejudgement And Postjudgement
Interest Costs
• Each Occurrence Limit: $5,000,000

• Loss Of Earnings In Claim Defense
• Participants in Camp Sports And
Recreational Activities
• Employers Liability: Provides coverage
for legal liability arising out of bodily
injuries suffered by your employees while
in the course of their employment.
• Voluntary Compensation
• Tenants Legal Liability - Broad Form
• Sudden And Accidental Pollution (120
Hours)
• Voluntary Medical Payments Including Volunteer Workers And Sports
Participants ($50,000/Person)
• Cross Liability/Separation Of Insureds
• Forest Fire Fighting Liability
• Hostile Fire
• Elevator Legal Liability And Collision
• Abuse, Molestation and Harassment
coverage up to $5,000,000, including all
insurable civil damages, occurrence
form coverage, $25,000 for
reimbursement of counselling/therapy
costs for alleged victims and $50,000 for
reimbursement of criminal defence costs
for wrongful allegations against your
employees and volunteers.

Crimes and Fidelity, Limits and Conditions of Insurance

Directors And Officers Liability (Up To $1,000,000) Includes:

• Coverage to protect board members, trustees, directors, officers, and employees,
volunteers and committee members while acting under the direction of your board.
Umbrella Liability (Excess Liability)
$10 million liability coverage for civil damage judgements in catastrophic and multiple
injury claims.

● Due to the increasing size and scope of civil damage awards, the insurance
marketplace offers Umbrella or Excess Liability policies to provide extra
protection above the standard $1,000,000 or $2,000,000 primary coverage
amount. This type of optional coverage is intended for claims that are coverable
under a General Liability or Third Party Automobile Liability policy. It is
particularly important protection for churches or charities...who operate higher
risk activities such as youth programs, camps, schools, day cares, etc., where
accidents could potentially involve serious and permanent injuries or fatalities to
multiple victims.

Coverage for Solar Panel System

● Roberton Hal will pay for the actual loss of Revenue sustained due to the
necessary suspension of "operations" during the "period of restoration." The
suspension must be caused by direct physical loss of or damage to property at
the premises described in the Declarations, including personal property in the
open (or in a vehicle) caused by or resulting from any Covered Cause of Loss.

Timeline

Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act (AODA) 2005

Private & Nonprofit Organizations
(1-49 employees)

2012 Customer Service

2017 Information & Communications

• Train staff and volunteers
• Develop policy

• Make publicly available information
accessible when asked

Information & Communications

Employment

• Make emergency and public safety
information accessible when asked

• Make employment practices more
accessible, including:
○○Recruitment
○○Employees and accommodation
○○Performance management, career
development, and redeployment

Employment
• Create workplace emergency plans for
employees with disabilities if requested

2014 Customer Service
Only organizations with 20+ employees:
• File compliance report (by Dec. 31st)

2015 IASR General Requirements
• Develop policy
• Consider accessibility when purchasing
or designing self-service kiosks

2016 IASR General Requirements
• Train of staff and volunteers

Information & Communications
• Make feedback processes accessible when
asked

IASR General Requirements
Only organizations with 20+ employees:
○○File compliance report (by Dec. 31st)

2018 Design of Public Spaces
• Make accessible new or redeveloped:
○○Recreational trails and beach
access routes accessible
○○Off-street parking lots accessible
○○Service counters, fixed queuing guides
and waiting areas with fixed seating
accessible

2020 IASR General Requirements
• Only organizations with 20+ employees:
○○File compliance report (by Dec. 31st)

ACCESSIBILITY
ONTARIO

(647) 502-7047 | training@accessontario.com

AccessOntario.com

Unicamp Alcohol and Drug Policy
Discreet alcohol/cannabis consumption is requested.
Serving Alcohol or supplying Tobacco or Cannabis to
Minors is Illegal. The legal drinking/smoking age is 19
years old. Unicamp will not tolerate any form of
supplying or serving Drugs or Alcohol to Minors and will
require anyone caught doing so to leave the premises as
soon as is consistent with safety.

To have an impact, Unicamp educates its staff and campers along with having a clear,
comprehensive, and well-promoted policy. This policy aims to provide a framework for the
prevention, screening, early intervention and treatment of alcohol problems experienced by
workers.
Unicamp’s Drug and Alcohol policy is based on these concerns:
●
●
●

●
●
●

●

Community members, of any age and for a wide variety of reasons, may require an environment
free of overt drug and alcohol use in order to maintain their health and well being.
Most parents expect that their children and youth will not be living in an environment where illegal
substance use is tolerated.
If some members of the community use substances illegally or drink to an extreme state, others
will feel a pressure to participate. Children and youth are especially vulnerable to such pressure.
Some will find it upsetting, or may participate against their own judgement. No one should have to
deal with such pressures at Unicamp.
Members of the Unicamp community who break the rules must be treated with dignity and
respect; but ultimately, rules can be enforced only if there are clearly defined and significant
sanctions against those who break them.
When staff members drink to an extreme state, they do not necessarily cross a legal line but they
do impact a professional one. Unicamp, its Board, and its Senior Staff need to make space to
talk, help, and discuss the consequences of their conduct without immediate dismissal
Our UU Values call us to foster rehabilitation:
○ People learn from their mistakes
○ People deserve second chances (especially with such a young staff team)
Alcohol Consumption and Smoking are a part of camp culture, when staff members and adult
campers want to take a break. Unicamp wants to acknowledge this reality, with a course of action
when an extreme state is exhibited, illegal substances are used, and/or use is not discreet.

The expectation for all Staff during Kid’s Camp is that they will not be intoxicated onsite, whether
on- or off-duty.
Designated Areas: Campers and Guests are requested to discrete consumption of smoking and
drinking in the designated areas. Smoking tobacco/cannabis is allowed at campsite fire pits, and
at the two designated smoking areas: in the parking lot near the tool shed and at the picnic site
farthest from Bob’s beach. All other areas are smoke-free. Drinking by campers should be limited
to their campsites, although occasional drinking takes place at the Dining Hall. Staff members of
age are requested to drink in designated areas, away from minors, and only when they are offduty.
●

Unicamp will identify and remove any safety hazards in areas where Smoking and Drinking
take place, especially in cases of Unicamp events such as Candlelight Dinner.
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If a Minor (Under 19 years of age) is caught Drinking or Smoking at Unicamp, their parents will be
notified immediately.
●
●
●
●

Gather as much information as possible about the situation, checking with staff and other
campers as necessary
Parents will have the decision of how to respond. Unicamp recommends that the minor
leaves the premises for at least a short period of time
Unicamp provides info to Parents / Youth regarding support and medical links
If still unknown, Unicamp will investigate how the Minor accessed drugs/alcohol. Anyone
caught supplying or serving alcohol or drugs to minors will be asked to leave the
premises as soon as is consistent with safety.

Response for Campers Drinking to Intoxication:
●
●

Unicamp staff reserve the right to limit interaction in programming or camp access use in
the event that there is suspicion that a Camper is Intoxicated
All reasonable efforts will be made to create a safe environment and ensure campers are
directed back to their site, including alerting the authorities (police and/or ambulance) in
cases of advanced inebriation or lack of compliance.

Response for Staff Members Drinking to Intoxication / Using Illegal Substances / Drinking or
Smoking Cannabis while On-Duty:
Immediate response by Camp Director:
- After notification ensure that staff member(s) and those (if any) that they were responsible for are
safe and secure
- Meet with their direct supervisor (Head of Ops/HC) or Program Coordinator or Assistant Camp
Director
- Gather as much information about the situation as possible
- Plan with other Senior Staff members to meet with the staff member (See Discipline Procedure)
-

-

Questions that may be used
- Do you know why we are having this meeting?
- Tell me what happened
- What have you learned?
- What do you think the appropriate consequences are/what happens next?
Give the staff member this policy
Explain how their actions impacted the camp community & need for professionalism
Discuss next steps

Discipline Procedure for a Staff Member of Age (19+ years):
1st Offence - Sit down meeting
- Have them give a written/verbal statement of actions, impact, and next steps
- Essentially an ownership/apology letter
- Talk about self-care plan and strategies for coping (this is already and should be
continued to be discussed during Staff Training)
- Specifically what it would look like for them to continue to work
- Written report goes into employee’s staff file and will be disclosed to the Executive
Director who will bring it to the Board.
2nd offence - Sit down meeting
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- A report should be written and placed in file internally
- Implement a curfew for them or a change in housing if applicable
- 3-day suspension (unpaid and offsite) period
3rd offence- sit down meeting
- Dismissal and report to the Board of directors
**Files of offences will be kept on file for 3 years (for instance if a staff member has their first offence in
2013, the next time an issue occurs in 2014 it would be their 2nd offence not another first offence.). The
Camp Director and Executive Director will have copies of the Record of Offenses for all Unicamp Staff
and place this information in the Employment File for future Senior Management.

RESOURCE FOR SENIOR STAFF, BOARD MEMBERS, AND CAMPERS
The Drug and Alcohol Helpline provides information about drug and alcohol addiction services in Ontario.
This helpline is live answer 24/7, confidential and free. Services provided include:
* Provide information about treatment services and supports in your community
* Listen, offer support and provide strategies to help you meet your goals
* Provide basic education about drug and alcohol problems
Phone: 1-800-565-8603 - 1-800-565-8603 (Toll Free) - 1-800-565-8603 (Crisis Line)
E-Mail / Web:

administration@connexontario.ca

www.drugandalcoholhelpline.ca

Evaluation of Alcohol and Drug Policy
The Executive Director will do a yearly review of this policy to ensure Unicamp meets its legal obligations.
The Camp Director will provide yearly feedback about this policy’s application at the end of the Summer
season.
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Unicamp Dog Policy
The Board has set this Policy and Guidelines
with the safety and happiness of both dog
owners and non-owners in mind.
Dog Friendly Dates 2019
August 9 - 11, 2019: Dog Friendly Weekend
August 12 - 16, 2019: Dog Friendly Week
October 11 - 14, 2019: Thanksgiving Weekend

We welcome our dog-owning campers to bring their pets during the specific Dog-Friendly days
only. We ask that those bringing dogs be mindful of their canine friends at Unicamp and respect
these designated dates and the conduct policy.
Dogs must be on-leash at all times on camp property, including the pond. Dogs must be kept
back from people who do not wish to interact with them (especially at campfires and at the
beach, where they might be in close proximity) and away from other dogs that may interact
aggressively with them. Excessive barking disturbs everyone at camp; if your dogs bark when
you leave them alone, then someone must stay with them at all times.
Dogs are not permitted on Cowpye Hill, which is part of our neighbour’s ranch property. The
Unicamp Spiritual Centre and Dining Hall and deck are off limits to all animals at all times, with
the exception of service animals. Owners must carry bags to scoop up after their dogs (on any
part of Unicamp property, even in the woods), and dispose of the bags in the container marked
for that purpose near the dining hall.
During Dog-Friendly dates, dogs are permitted in the pond at Bob’s Beach only and between
10–11 am and 4–5 pm only, and must not be allowed to relieve themselves on the beach sand.
Dogs digging on the beach disrupts the natural habitat of our turtle friends, and has seen them
migrating further away from the beach to lay their eggs. We ask you to be mindful of this when
your dog is on the beach. These guidelines were set with the integrity of the natural environment
and the safety and happiness of all camp users in mind.
Please note that those with service animals are welcome to public spaces within Unicamp. The
animal must be identified in one of two ways: wearing an identifying vest, or documentation from
a regulated health professional confirming that the owner requires the animal for reasons
relating to a disability. Service dogs must be kept on their leash/harness and under the full
control of their user/owner at all times. Campers are encouraged to alert the Camp Director of
their situation before their arrival at Unicamp.
Two warnings in the form of yellow cards will be given if these rules are broken and if a third red
card is issued you and your dog will be asked to leave without a refund.

Tips:
a. When approaching a dog, ask the owner if the dog is people-friendly.
b. When your dog is approaching another dog, ask the owner if the dog is dog-friendly
Background
Many campers have expressed a concern about the limited options for dog owners to bring their
pets to camp. Many other Unicampers strongly favour of reducing the number of days when
dogs are present on site. One of the most compelling reasons is a concern about the disruptive
effects of dogs on the ecosystem within and surrounding Unicamp's property.
Over our 50 years, Unicamp was largely dog-free from the mid 70's onwards, and had a 'no
dogs' policy in effect for the 25 years from 1987 to 2011 inclusive. Consultation with the
Unicamp community has been sporadic. From both viewpoints their reasons are varied.
The dates permitting dogs were first introduced in 2012, nor when the number of days was
doubled in 2015. (Refer to the appendix attached for a chronology of dog-friendly dates at
Unicamp).
We acknowledge Unicamp's natural ecosystem—our interdependent web of life. We respect
the Bruce Trail Conservancy regulation in its hikers' code of conduct: "When and where dogs
are permitted, keep dogs on a leash and under control at all times and no excessive barking".
For many of us in the Unicamp community, the magic of Unicamp is linked to its natural setting
and the opportunity it affords to observe the local indigenous wildlife: baby snapping turtles
emerging from their sandy nests and making their way slowly to the waters of the pond;
tadpoles and frogs lingering at the water's edge; porcupines waddling along the forest floor;
painted turtles and snappers lounging in the shallows; deer & their fawns bounding across the
field adjacent to camp; coyotes calling to each other under the stars.
The benefit to children to have the opportunity to experience these moments first-hand is
immeasurable and these magical moments are to be protected. Local wildlife become less
active during the day in order to avoid dog interactions because the scent of dogs repels wildlife
and the effects remain after the dogs are gone. For these reasons, the Board and staff insist on
the importance of our 'dogs on leash at all times', and 'no excessive barking' guidelines.
While some dog owners may indeed feel that their canine pets are "like children" to them, dogs
are not granted the same considerations and accommodations accorded to children. This
distinction is especially important in the context of an organisation whose primary mandate is to
provide summer camps for children, and whose mission statement emphasizes "respect for our
natural assets . . . and for the interdependent web of creation". Taking on a dog as a pet is a
choice, and with that choice should come the understanding that there will be limitations on
where and when a canine pet is allowed to accompany its owner.
Therefore, we protect the integrity of our ecosystem's interdependent web of life by limiting the
total number of days dogs are allowed at camp, and keeping our canine friends "on a leash and
under control at all times" while on site.

Appendix – History of Dog Friendly Dates at Unicamp 1988-2018
Dog Friendly Dates at Unicamp 1988-2018
1987-2011: 0 days
2012: 6 days Family Camp 3 (Aug 19-24)
Kitchener/Waterloo
2013: 9 days Dog Friendly Weekend (June 79) Family Camp 3 (Aug 18-23)
Kitchener/Waterloo
2014: 9 days Dog Friendly
Weekend (June 6-8) Family Camp
3 (August 17-22) GTA
2015: 19 days Dog Friendly Weekend (June 5-7)
Family Camp 2 (August 9-14) Kitchener/Waterloo
Family Camp 3 (August 16-21) GTA
Thanksgiving (October 9-12)
2016: 19 days Dog Friendly Weekend (June 3-5)
Family Camp 2 (August 7-12) Kitchener/Waterloo
Family Camp 3 (August 14-19) GTA
Thanksgiving (October 7-10)
2017: 19 days Dog Weekend (June 3-5) Family
Camp 2 (August 13-18) Kitchener/Waterloo Family
Camp 3 (August 20-25) GTA Thanksgiving
(October 6-9)
2018: 17 days Dog Friendly Weekend, June 1-3 (Fri-Sun)
Family Camp 1—Kitchener/Waterloo, August 12-17 (Sun-Fri)
Dog Friendly Weekend, August 17-19 (Fri-Sun) Family
Camp 3—GTA, August 26-31 (Sun-Fri)
2019 (Proposed, board-approved): 12 days Dog Friendly
Weekend, August 9-11 (Fri-Sun) Family Camp 1—
Kitchener/Waterloo, August 11-16 (Sun-Fri) Thanksgiving,
October 11-14 (Fri-Mon)

Unicamp Policy: Medication
The Purpose of the Unicamp Medication Policy is to
define Unicamp’s approach to medication administration
and medication storage.
1. Purpose: This policy works to ensure that Unicamp is compliant
with Ontario Camping Association’s (OCA) accreditation standards,
as found in the Health Care (HC) section of the 2017 OCA Yearround Standards for Accreditation. The following standards are
discussed in this document:
HC.2.5. Is documentation completed and kept by the
healthcare staff specifying the frequency and type of care received by each camper and staff?
HC.2.7. Are health information and health records kept in a confidential manner?
HC.3.4. Are there current written Treatment and Medication Guidelines available for all health care
staff?
HC.3.5. Are medications at camp stored and managed in a safe and secure manner and handled and
monitored in a controlled manner?
2. Definitions:
Unregulated Care Providers (UCP)
- An individual who is not licensed to practice as a Health Professional in Ontario.
- “All nurses and UCP must have a current CPR and Canadian Red Cross Society or St. John’s
Ambulance Standard First Aid Certificate or a certificate that the Ministry of Health deems to be
equivalent. Copies of current first aid certificates held by staff should be kept on file,” (OCA, HC, 3,
2017).
Camp Caregiver
- The title given to volunteer UCP at Unicamp of Ontario. The Camp Caregiver will be a designated
Senior Staff person (eg. Camp Director) in the event that an appropriate volunteer is not ON SITE AT
THAT MOMENT ( ‘secured’).
Medication
- A substance (salve, pill, patch, needle, epi-pen) used for medical treatment, especially a medicine or
drug; INCLUDING OVER THE COUNTER OTC
- Treatment using drugs – the administration of a medicine or drug.
Emergency Medication
- Medications that are taken DURING an emergency situation for immediate management/mitigation of
symptoms;
- Epinephrine Auto Injectors (EAIs or Epi-Pens), Inhalers, Ativan, Diastat, etc.
3. Policy:
The following procedures must be followed during Kids’ Camp, Jouth Camp, and any program where
underage campers are placed in the care of Unicamp and/or Unicamp Staff, excluding (1) where the underage
participants are in the primary care of their parent or guardian (eg. during Family Camp) or (2) an individual
affiliated with a private rental (eg. child care during a private retreat).
Medication Intake:
1. All medication belonging to participants and staff must be handed in to the Camp Caregiver or designated
Senior Staff person upon arrival at camp. The Camp Caregiver or designated Senior Staff person is
responsible for ensuring that the Medication Administration Record is properly filled out by the
parent/guardian or staff member.
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2. Prescription medication and OTC medication must:
2.1. Be in its original packaging;
2.2. Prescription medication must have the original pharmacy label on it, be up to date, and clearly indicate
the name of the individual, name of the medication, the dosage, the route of administration, and the
frequency with which the medication should be administered (OCA, HC.3.5., 2017).
3. The following information must be provided with all medication:
3.1. Medication name;
3.2. Medication dosage;
3.3. Route of administration;
3.4. Times that the medication must be taken.
Medication Storage:
4. Medication must be stored securely. A lockable cabinet, lock, and key as well as a means for securing the
fridge in the medication administration area will be provided for this purpose.
4.1. Expired and outdated medications should be properly discarded at a pharmacy (OCA, HC.3.5., 2017).
4.2. A one-time dose (as indicated by the dosing instructions) of medications such as Epinephrine Auto
Injectors (EAIs) and inhalers or any other emergency medications (Ativan, Diastat, etc.) may be carried
by the individual, after consultation with the Camp Caregiver or designated Senior Staff person (OCA,
HC.3.5., 2017).
Medication Administration:
5. Medication must be administered in a secure and private area. Attention must be paid to the privacy of the
individual while respecting that no camper should be one on one with a staff member or volunteer.
6. The Camp Caregiver or designated Senior Staff person is responsible for overseeing the administration of
medications.
6.1. Except in circumstances where the participant or staff member is unable to self-administer their
medication(s) (eg. mobility/dexterity impediments, anaphylaxis, etc.), medications will be selfadministered and supervised by the Camp Caregiver or designated Senior Staff person.
6.2. All administered medication must be documented and initialed/signed indicating medication was given
and at what time (OCA, HC.3.5., 2017). The Medication Administration Record is to be used for this
purpose.
7. Over the counter drugs:
7.1. The Camp Caregiver or designated Senior Staff person must get parental/guardian consent in
advance of giving any over the counter medications that the participant has not brought with them.
This consent can be gained either by contacting the parent/guardian each time an over the counter
medication is required or in advance by including a consent section on the health form.
8. The following are some examples of medication errors. If a medication error occurs, contact any
appropriate emergency services, as well as the emergency contact for the individual, if they are a
participant or a minor. Notify the onsite Camp Director as soon as possible. An Incident Report must be
filled out in the case of any medication error.
8.1. Missed dose
8.2. Overdose
8.3. Wrong medication
Medication Documentation:
9. The following documents are designed to ensure that Unicamp follows appropriate procedures with regard
to medication administration:
9.1. Unicamp Medication Policy
9.2. Medication Administration Record
9.2.1. The Camp Caregiver or designated Senior Staff person is responsible for ensuring that the
Medication Administration Record is properly filled out and kept up do date.
9.3. Incident Report
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10. All documentation must be dated and signed by the Camp Caregiver or Senior Staff who is overseeing
medication administration (OCA, HC.2.5., 2017).
11. The Camp Director (on site) should ensure that there is an ongoing list of staff names, titles, and signatures
for all staff that provide health care. This will be all Senior Staff, Lifeguards, and Camp Caregivers. This list
should be kept on file annually (OCA, HC.2.5., 2017).
11.1. This list should include a master signature sheet with full signature and initials of Senior Staff,
Lifeguards, and Camp Caregivers that can be cross checked with signatures and initials on health
care paperwork (OCA, HC.2.5., 2017).
12. All documentation must be kept in a secure and confidential manner. Medication Administration Records
are to be kept in an organized binder, locked up with the centralized medication, while an individual is on
site (OCA, HC.2.7., 2017).
12.1. Once a participant or staff member is no longer on site, records should be digitized and kept for the
time period recommended by the Canadian Medical Protective Association (CMPA) (OCA, HC.2.7.,
2017).
12.1.1. “The CMPA recommends to its members that they retain their medical records for at least 10
years from the date of last entry or, in the case of minors, 10 years from the time the patient would
have reached the age of majority (either age 18 or 19 years),” (OCA, HC.2.7., 2017).

4. Medication Policy FAQ:
What do I need to know about bringing medication to camp?
- All medications, prescription and over the counter, must come to camp in their original packaging,
labeled with the individual’s name.
- Prescription medications must be prescribed to the individual who will be taking them.
- There must be enough medication for the duration of the program(s), contract, or treatment.
- Clear instructions must be provided to the Camp Caregiver for the administration of the medication(s) –
date, time, dose, route of administration, storage, etc.
Where will my medication(s) be stored?
- Medication storage is centralized in Tom’s A. All prescription and OTCs, excluding one-time doses of
emergency medication, are locked up in a secure cabinet.
- Emergency medication, depending on what it is and its severity, is kept either on the individual or in a
bucket on top of the cabinet. Emergency medications are not locked up.
- Emergency medication is carried in a one-time dose, alongside a Medication Administration Record,
with the individual.
When will I get my medication
- Medication will be administered at set times throughout the day. Usually at meals (8am, 12pm, 5pm)
and at bedtime (9pm). If your medication needs to be taken outside of these times, it can be arranged
with the Camp Caregiver.
- Your medication will be returned to you or your parent/guardian at the end of your program/contract or
at the end of Kids’ Camp/Jouth, whichever comes first.
Why do we do this?
- So that we have easy access to medication records in the event of an emergency.
- So that everyone remembers to take their medication at the right times.
- In order to ensure folks get the right medication and that no one takes something they shouldn’t.
Will everyone know what medication I am on?
- The Camp Caregiver will be the primary person responsible for administering and recording your
medication. A Senior Staff person will go through the medication binder at least once each day to
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ensure that everything is recorded and that there have been no medication errors. No other person will
know what mediation you are on.
What if I want to stop taking my medication?
- Prescription medication is prescribed by a licensed health practitioner, therefore if an individual wishes
to stop their medication before the end of treatment while they are in the care or employ of Unicamp of
Ontario, they must do so only under the advice/direction of a licensed health practitioner.
- Time and a means of transport will always be provided for participants or staff members who wish to
and/or need to see a licensed health practitioner. If the individual is a minor, their parent/guardian will
be notified of this trip.
- An Incident Report will be filled out every time an individual is taken to see a licensed health practitioner
while in the care or employ of Unicamp of Ontario.
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Camp Director and Program Director Director’s Report to the Annual General Meeting of Unicamp of
Ontario 2019
Michelle McComb and Jenny Thomas Bojin
Unicamp’s 50 summer is coming to a close. Like the 49 seasons that have come before, this was
a summer full of growth, joy, celebration and learning. There was a tremendous amount of planning and
work done this summer and we would like to offer our sincerest thanks to all of those who gave their
time, heart, and soul to their work here at Unicamp. We would like to share with you some highlights of
our successes as well as challenges and areas that will require further growth and development.
th

As a team, we oversee our team of staff and volunteers and five main operational aspects of
camp: Onsite Administration, Kitchen, Operations, Property, and Programming.
Onsite Administration: This year we used a new booking system, Let’s Camp in addition to Planning
Centre which is the system we use for children’s camps. These systems had promise to be better than the
one we were using previously, and are a definite improvement. They still do not do all of what we need
them to be able to do. We are in the process of considering the best solutions to improve our guest
booking experience. Additionally, we are hoping to work with the board to ensure that our staffing budget
creates space for a full season role which specifically focuses on registrations. At many points this
summer we did not set the customer service standard that we aspire to and are working hard to be
accountable for those gaps and find solutions for the coming seasons.
Kitchen: The operation of our kitchen is a vital part of our summers here. Healthy and ethically prepared
food is something which nourishes our hearts and speaks to our values. This has been a year of a lot of
work and a lot of learning in our kitchen. We had some significant staffing changes mid-season and our
kitchen staff worked hard to adapt. Moving forward, we are hoping to have more continuity in kitchen
staff team. Learning and growing in this role means better food, more timely meals, and money saved in
food and travel costs.
Operations: Things got dirty, we cleaned it. Arden Hody, Assistant Director looked into a new cleaning
system and worked on revising the procedures we have in place for cleaning camp. We had difficulties in
staffing camp appropriately for private rentals during the preseason and noticed an overall decrease in the
number of people who were willing to volunteer for us which impacts what and how we do things at
camp.
Property: Our favourite man Terry, led the M.I.T. program this year again with the help of our Assistant
Property Manager, Siebren. Russell T-B was the only other participant, in this small but mighty team.
They did a lot of work on setting up the tents and floor, renovating and installing a new shower in the
Program Centre bathroom and improvements to camp overall. We are glad that this was the start towards
a more accessible camp for all users and are excited for the Dave’s renovation that is to come next
season.
Program: We were very fortunate to have an exceptionally strong programming team at camp this
summer. During children’s camp, our camp counselors worked extraordinarily hard to create a truly
special and magical environment. Enrollment came in sporadically and unpredictably this year and we
will need to address some of our publicity challenges looking toward the 2020 season. We had
approximately 164 children and youth enrolled throughout out 5 weeks of programming. Additionally, a
programming barrier we faced this year arose as a result of being significantly understaffed. This will be
something to keep in mind in the coming years as we consider why our staffing budget is changing and

evolving. We will be working with the board this year to ensure that we address these issues moving
forward.
We would like to extend our thanks to the board, who were operating this past year without a
program chair. As such, many folks stepped in to take on this portfolio and we extend our thanks to
them.
Many facilitators were able to offer programming at Unicamp this summer. Creating space to come
together and learn, grow, celebrate, and create art is extremely special and speaks to our values. There is
more space in the calendar to accommodate and grow our facilitator led programming at Unicamp.
As this historic 50th summer season of Unicamp comes to an end, we reflect on the work, love,
dedication, and commitment that was put in this summer and before us. We are grateful to have been able
to reflect, honour, and uphold that legacy.
Hugs, Handshakes, High-fives, and Smiles!

Property Manager Report
AGM 2019
Fall and Winter
Since the last AGM the staff and many volunteers hosted numerous events and put camp to sleep for
another winter. Much wood was cut, split and piled.
Dangerous trees were brought down and loads of garbage run to the dump.
Despite inclement weather three leaking cottage roof were redone with steel by a local contractor
under our supervision last fall and this spring. There are three more to do.
Maintenance in Training (MIT) 2019
This spring there was a shortage of on sight staff for setting up camp and the deep cleaning required in
the spring before the mid June rentals start. Despite 12 hour days and working on our days off camp was
not up to our usual standards and this was noted by Wild Ginger on their arrival. A full time cleaning
person should be hired for two weeks before the Rentals start in mid June.
This was done in the past.
In early May the extensive job of turning the water on was aided by a spirited group of Volunteers.
Siebren, Josh, Yvonne, Dan and Gillian made for a smooth fun filled operation despite the usual
challenges.
Myself, Russell Thomas-Bojin and Siebren Kuitert spearheaded a productive 4 weeks of work, fun and
challenges. Joshua Sapparoli-Gordon helped us out in the first week and Joseph Sanders lent us his
expertise in the second week . Alta , Vicki, Shelley, Julie, and Joan all helped out with the cooking.
Oliver pitched in at the end of the program.
Our main project was the installation of a new wheel chair friendly wash room and shower in the
Program centre. Entailing the installation of a full size hot water heater and total rework of the plumbing
and electrical systems.
A new Water Heater was installed in Nellies severing it's unresponsive connection with Summerhill.
Extensive time was taken to rework and paint the Dining deck wall in preparation for the long
anticipated leafing project.
Opening camp tasks such as cleaning cabins and out houses, putting up tents and tarps, clearing paths of
debris and fallen trees and taking garbage to top of road and the dump never seem to let up.

Other Projects and Work
The collapsed tent platform in the staff village has been shored up and new decking installed,
Many deck, stair boards and railings have been replaced.
Tilted or drowned swimming rafts have been refurbished or replaced..
We Diked and diverted water from parking lot, maintenance shed, tilting Propane tank and flooded
pump house
We put up the Brand new Party tent the day after it arrived only to have it transformed into a mangled
mess in a wind storm the day before our first rental.
Through ingenuity and hard work we ended up with three tent frames amd two covers. We were ready
for the 50th Anniversary celebrations.

This year we switched our propane supplier to a lower cost local supplier who had been involved with
the installation of our new stove. Happier with the responsiveness and communication.
Siebren, our many talented Assistant Property Manager left in mid August for University in the
Netherlands. His strong work ethic and dedication was appreciated and hopefully he will be part of our
staff in the future.
Plans are in the works for an accessible outdoor shower and replacement of our two oldest outdoor
showers. Daves, Rosie's and the program centre need new roofs. Bobs beach needs to be refurbished.
The infrastructure and dorms continue to creep downhill. We need volunteers to help to cut and split
wood for our upcomming rentals and programs and next year.
Daves 2 Unit Plan Revisited
The Unicamp Board is currently pushing a single Unit Renovation of Daves that is admirably fully
accessible and has communal accommodation for 9 people or a large family group.
This leaves a person seeking full accessibility with privacy, left with renting a space suitable for a large
group of people. This is a limiting option for guests and Unicamp.
Tom's self contained units would remain the first choice for key staff , small families and groups and
those seeking partial accessibility and privacy.
The original idea was to Renovate Dave's to increase and improve on the desirable characteristics
inherent in the two unit model of Tom's A and B. The board at the time via a Committee requested
that a 2 Unit plan for renovations be drawn up and was given the go ahead. Late this spring the plan
morphed into a single unit design kindly drawn by Carol Boucher which a thinned out board is
presenting as " the plan".
At my request Carol drew up a brilliant adaptation of my rough plan for two partially accessible units
and transformed it into a plan with a large fully accessible unit and a smaller partially accessible
second unit.
The fully accessible unit offers private accommodation for a single individual or a couple. With
appropriate couches in the living space a small group or family can be accommodated comfortably
with light cooking and private 3 piece bathroom.
The second partially accessible unit offers private accommodation with light cooking and 3 piece
bathroom for a single individual or couple. With an appropriate couch in the living space a third
person could be accommodated. In special situations the both sides could be rented to a large group
or family with potential accommodation for 9 people.
This second unit could replace Toms as the preferred unit for camp staff, cooks nurses or full time
caretaker/admistrator. Tom's A and B would then become fully available for rental and achieve the

earning potential that it has seldom realised.
I think this two unit design should be revisited by the new board so that the amazing fund raising
achievements of the board, staff and individuals truly enhance the options and future of Unicamp and
it's guests.
Terry O'Sullivan
Unicamp Property Manager

BIO Sue Berlove –SEPT 2019

SUE BERLOVE
I am 71 years old; my retirement will always
include giving back to communities that have
offered me so much. While I am an
international pet sitter these days, I do have
the time to take on an active role!

I have been an active member of First Unitarian Congregation of Toronto for over 30 years. Committed
to contributing to this enduring community, I have volunteered in many varied roles. Most recently, I
held a 3-year leadership role in the area of administration. I have learned the challenges in providing
leadership to a UU community.
Over the years, I have come to Unicamp for programs, family camp and tent camping. Last Fall, I
volunteered to help with the 50th Anniversary plans. This included producing the video of Tom Brown,
inviting UU fellowships and congregations to host local fundraising and planning/hosting the August
weekend celebration at Camp. Interested in continuing my involvement and aware of is involved, I asked
and was accepted to fill a vacant seat on the board in June. I think board members have appreciated my
involvement; so, I would like to be voted onto the board at the AGM.
I spent 20 years working in the non-profit sector. The highlight was playing a senior management role
for the Osteoporosis Society, where I coordinated public education and recruited/supported volunteers.
I worked closely with the Board of Directors to develop a strong national network. This included
creating and supporting local chapters, as well as bridging local, and national needs.
The non-profit sector will be undergoing a review at the provincial level, starting in January 2020. This
will affect Unicamp. My experience and interest in how non profits govern themselves is a key part of
what I have to offer.

Bio - Alexandra Hobson

My name is Ally Hobson. I grew up going to Unitarian church in Montreal, Quebec. The sense of
community that I felt there had a lasting impact on me. When I was 7 years old, we also
discovered Unicamp and even though it was an 8-hour drive from our home, my family fell in
love with it and started attending Family Camp every summer. I later went on to become a junior
youth camper, and eventually to work at Kid's Camp, first as a counsellor, then as CIT facilitator.
Throughout my adolescence, Unicamp and my friendships there were a pillar of stability and
support in my life that I will be forever grateful for. High school and young adulthood can be
difficult, stressful and disorienting and I will always cherish the fact that every summer, I got to
return to a community that was accepting, progressive and committed to holding itself to a
higher standard rooted in our shared community values.
In September 2016, my partner and I were so lucky to have the experience of getting married
here (we have a great shot of us jumping off the diving tower in our suit/wedding dress!). Shortly
afterwards, we moved to Toronto so that I could take a job as an associate in an employment
and immigration law firm. I began attending Sunday services at First and was reminded of the
sense of community and spirituality that I felt as a kid within a Unitarian congregation.
I am now taking the step of running for the Unicamp Board because I am eager to give back to
this community that has meant so much to me. I am also expecting my first baby in November
and I know that I want her to be able to grow up coming to this beautiful and magical place.
Given my professional background, I have a particular interest in the administrative matters of
the camp, and I hope to be able to help make sure that Unicamp stays in compliance with its
legal obligations, especially given the changes to the Ontario Not-for-Profit Corporations Act
(ONCA) scheduled to come into effect in 2020

Bio - Nicole Cormier

Hi there!
My name is Nicole Cormier and I’m very much looking forward to the prospect of serving on the
Unicamp Board of Directors. I have a long history with Unicamp, I’ve been coming here since I
was four years old. This history, paired with my current professional experience lends a unique
skill set and perspective that I’d love the opportunity to share.
In my time at Unicamp, I have been a family camper, CIT, long-time staff member, and
volunteer. I have been fortunate enough to have worked most positions at camp. These roles
have included junior staff experience, Volunteer Coordination, Program Directing, as well as
being the Head Cook.
My parents got the suggestion to come to Unicamp through another family at our congregation
in Mississauga and although my mother is not the biggest fan of sleeping on the ground, she
and my dad saw the value in growing up at a place that treasures inclusion and a wonderful
sense of community. These values remain central to my identity and I hope that my work on the
board would foster and build our infrastructure in order to continue making space for these
values to come alive.
Professionally, I work in the non-profit sector in the event production field. Working in event
coordination and logistics at WE Day and Evergreen Brickworks means that I bring experience
working with facility management, contract negotiation, large-scale budgeting, and a familiarity
with our obligations and restrictions as a non-profit.
I am in a place in my life where, for the next two years, I have the time, commitment, and energy
to take on this role. I look forward to working with and for you in the coming years.

Nominee for Youth Representative: Emily Michael
I was raised in Guelph attending the Unitarian Congregation of Guelph. I’m returning to high
school to further my education on my life path to be an early childhood teacher. I have always
been a big believer in volunteering. Through my childhood I have volunteered for lots of nonprofit organizations and have watched and learned a lot from watching the way youth are
involved in and represented in their communities.
Currently, in addition to being a volunteer hockey coach and volunteering in a variety of ways
with my school, I have a volunteer spot on my church board as the youth rep and I hope to use
the experience and knowledge I am gaining to support and strengthen my community. In that
role my goal is to help to make sure that the youth get a voice in our church and their needs are
being met to the best we can.
I have loved being on staff at Unicamp. It has given me a great space to learn about myself and
Unitarian values. I am hoping to learn even more so that I can help camp grow and thrive. I
have learned that volunteering can give you experience that you will never get from working. I
hope to bring my skills and experience, knowledge of Unicamp as a staff member, my
connections with Unicamp staff and campers, and my goals of ensuring youth have a voice in
their communities, to the Unicamp Board.

Nominations for the Unicamp 2019-2020 Board will be accepted from the floor during the AGM.

Unicamp Leadership and Staff Structure
Institutional Members - CUC + Member Congregations
Board of Directors

1.Compliance 2.Financial Management

Legal Advisor

External Accountant

Executive Director Responsibilities
3.Marketing,
4.Human Resources
5.Program Planning, Development &
Fundraising
Management
Evaluation
Executive Director Oversees:
Administrator
Camp Director
Property Manager
CD and PM work in consultation

Camp Director Oversees:
1.On-Site Administration
2.Programming
3. Food
4.Operations
Customer Service
Assistant Camp
Program Director
Head Cook
Representative
Director
Head Counselor,
Assistant Cook
Head of Ops
LIT/CIT Facilitators
Counselors (13)

Prep Cook (3)

5.Property
Assistant Property
Manager
4 MIT Spaces
4 Building Crew
Spaces in May
(Optional)

The Ontario Not-for-Profit Corporations Act has not yet impacted Unicamp, but it will.
Unicamp has to inform and prepare itself now, especially given that we will be expected to
re-apply for Charitable Status. In a future Annual General Meeting, Unicamp members
may be called to re-consider Unicamp’s mandate and mission.
MISSION STATEMENT & MANDATE
Unicamp is a Unitarian Universalist camp that is committed to providing a safe and
welcoming seasonal camp and spiritual retreat to a diverse community. Our high quality
U.U. values based programs and activities are designed to enable this community to
demonstrate a respect for our natural assets, for each other &amp; for the interdependent web
of creation.
UNICAMP OF ONTARIO INCORPORATED
For the following objects, that is to say: (a) To organise, operate and maintain camps with
related services for Unitarian religious training of children and to provide, operate and maintain
facilities for church and leadership conferences and seminars;

Overview of the ONCA
When it does come into force it will:
● simplify the incorporation process, making it easier and more efficient
● clarify rules for governing a corporation and increase accountability
● clarify that not-for-profit corporations can earn a “profit” through commercial activities
(e.g., selling T-shirts) as long as it is reinvested to support the corporation’s not-for-profit
purposes
● allow some corporations to use a "review engagement" in place of an audit
● enhance members’ rights and outline actions they can take if they believe directors and
officers are not acting in the corporation’s best interest
● give members greater access to financial records
Nonprofits will receive:
● further details closer to when ONCA comes into force
● a three-year transition period once ONCA is in force to make any necessary changes to
their governing documents
● help to support a smooth implementation

Step 1: Review letters patent and supplementary letters patent
Your not-for-profit corporation should consider:
● legal advice to ensure letters patent and supplementary letters patent:
○ set out purposes that are reflective of its current and future activities and are
consistent with other laws and court decisions
○ do not conflict with ONCA or its regulations – if they do, provisions in ONCA or
its regulations usually take priority
● professional tax advice regarding tax status and requirements – especially if it’s a
charitable corporation
Step 2: Review the by-laws
Once ONCA is in effect, a default organizational by-law:
● will automatically apply to a new corporation incorporated under ONCA that does not
pass an organizational by-law within 60 days after the date of its incorporation
● can be used by existing not-for-profit corporations to help them review and make any
changes to their by-laws as needed to comply with ONCA
Step 3: Review director and officer provisions
Consider:
●
●
●
●
●

whether directors must be members of the corporation
whether to change the directors’ term of office (the maximum under ONCA is four years)
whether existing provisions for directors' meetings should be changed
revising any provision concerning indemnification and insurance
revising any provisions relating to ex officio directors (people who automatically become
directors because they hold a particular office such as being a director of another
organization)
● revising the conflict of interest provisions for directors
● reviewing officer positions to determine if changes should be made to the corporation’s
current governance structure

SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION ABOUT DAVE’S COTTAGE RENOVATION--2018- 2019
Establishing Criteria at the Start
Although the discussions regarding a renovation plan have focused on several key issues, clear criteria
were not identified nor documented at the start of the project. The considerations have been expressed
in different ways, depending on how the individual identifies Unicamp’s priorities
A Renovation Plan Based on Camp Priorities
Without initial criteria, board discussions typically centred around finding a plan that would take our
priorities into account. The priorities fall into four areas of concern.
Four areas of concern kids camp staff, disability accommodation, adult/family rental preferences, and
rental income generation.
Accessibility: A Clear Priority
There has always been a commitment to accessible accommodation that includes a washroom.
The ability to accommodate someone with a wheelchair—specifically to build a shower that would be
accessible. This was considered a priority in all discussions.
Ed was invited to represent the disabled perspective on two occasions; he provided more detailed
requirements to consider when renovating for accessibility. His main concerns included:
 Make it possible for someone living in a wheelchair to make a complete turn in the bathroom,
removing ledges for ease in getting in and out of the shower.
 He also made a case for privacy, as many individuals are uncomfortable undressing in the
presence of others.
 And, such individuals need a caretaker to sleep nearby.
 All of his concerns were discussed, documented and are available for further review.
Three Other Areas of Concern
Looking at the possibility that the renovation could include other camp priorities, there were discussions
about three concerns. What follows is a summary of these concerns and the questions they raise for
Unicamp.
1. Kids Camp
The camp staff point of view relates to two different needs:
 Staff need a designated area to be called a health centre and a room to isolate a sick child.
 Be able to accommodate overflow of staff (e.g. cooks, nurse) and campers. More beds and a
communal layout allow staff to use the larger living room for overflow as well.
Because Kid’s Camp is part of Unicamp’s mandate as well as a significant portion of our
Programming and Income, this Priority had great weight in the Board’s decision.
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2. Adult and Family Preferences
We get requests for privacy from single adults and couples. This leads to questions:
 Should adults expect privacy at this type of camp.
 Are there situations where we should offer this?
 Is there a demand for additional private accommodation that might make this a priority?
And, this year we had requests from several families where one member was disabled.
They wanted to sleep in the same cottage, but there was no way to accommodate this.
 These families were split up, unable to make it work in one cottage
 Is this a new and growing request? We were taken by surprise.
Unicamp’s secondary mission is to offer a space of Retreat for UU’s that likewise offers a space for
community-building. As stated in our promotional material, "Most of our cottages and dorms
encourage a shared living/community dynamic, with several bedrooms and bunk beds."

3. Rental Income is always a consideration
We assessed several renovation designs with this in mind. Questions that came up
 Rental income increases if single adults share rooms;
 More bedrooms translate into more rental income—more people sleep in that cottage
 Does renovating with more bedrooms make it more difficult for accommodating the disabled?
 Is Unicamp promoting communal cottages as part of building community? If so, smaller rooms
might create a challenge for someone living in a wheelchair.
The Process and Moving Forward
The Board had an extremely difficult decision to make and did not take that responsibility lightly.
All priorities were discussed with the Architect, in order to consider how best these could be
incorporated into the design for Dave’s Cottage.
A special meeting was called for those with interest and knowledge in Accessibility and the Dave’s
Cottage design, in order to consider two version of the plans (a private design and a communal design).
There was further discussion at the June Board meeting before the board’s executive voted to renovate
Dave’s as a one-unit cottage.
Since the Motion was made without a full Board quorum, the membership must approve this decision. If
not, the incoming Board must then look at all the information and make a decision before Renovations
can begin.
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